
 

 

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 
June 2, 2014 

6:00 p.m. 
 

1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 
 

4. Minutes of Meetings – May 12 and 19, 2014 
 

5. Public Hearing 
 

 A. Consider 2014-2015 Liquor License Renewal Applications. 
 
6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will  be received 

from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 

 
7. Administrator’s Report 

 
8. New Business 
 

A. Consider award of contract for 39th Avenue and Fire Station#1 site 
improvements and utilities.  

 
B. Consider material procurement for Park and Ride bridges. 
 

C. Consider award of contract for the Park and Ride paving. 
 

D. Consider award of contract for 2014 Paving Program. 
 

 E. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will 

  be enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board  
  member so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business 
  and considered at this point on the agenda.) 

  1) Approve Renewal of Towing Licenses. 
  2) Approve Renewal of Keno Outdoor Theater License. 

 
9. Village Board Comments 

 
10. Adjournment 
 

The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



SPECIAL MEETING 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI 

May 12, 2014 

5:30 p.m. 
 

 A special meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, May 12, 2014.  

Meeting called to order at 5:30 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, 

Steve Kumorkiewicz and Mike Serpe.  Clyde Allen was excused.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, 

Village Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John 

Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and Recreation Director and Jane M. 

Romanowski, Village Clerk.  One citizen attended the meeting. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL 

 

3. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider a two year contract agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 

the Village of Pleasant Prairie Police Officers Association, Local 185 of the 

Wisconsin Professional Police Association, Inc. for the 2014-2015 calendar years. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

I request it remain on the table. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

We don’t need a motion. 

 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider Resolution #14-13 to approve a Relocation Order to permit the acquisition 

of real property and for the preservation of a roadway corridor for 39th Avenue 

and Springbrook Road. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, the Board had approved the project to proceed on 39th Avenue at our last meeting.  

As part of that there is going to be a need to acquire additional properties both in the character of 

real estate and part of the land in total or portions in total and also easements.  So the resolution 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

2 

we’re adopting tonight authorizes the Village to begin the process.  We’ll file relocation orders 

per the State with Kenosha County and also individually for the property owners that are affected 

by the properties pursuant to Statute 32 and begin the negotiation process and appraisals to get 

that work done.  So everybody that’s involved in it will have an idea to what extent if any there’s 

going to be acquisitions of their property.   

 

So the map up on the overhead is the relocation plat that Mike is showing you.  And then along 

with that there’s one total relocation order for the State, and then the Village processes an 

individual relocation order with each property.  And those properties are filed at Kenosha County.  

So that if anybody goes to sell a property or buy that property they know it’s a time consuming 

process and that property is subject to a relocation.  And I request that the Board consider 

adoption of Resolution 14-13 and authorize the staff to proceed with the relocation orders. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Mike.  Any further discussion?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #14-13 TO APPROVE A 

RELOCATION ORDER TO PERMIT THE ACQUISITION OF REAL PROPERTY AND FOR 

THE PRESERVATION OF A ROADWAY CORRIDOR FOR 39TH AVENUE AND 

SPRINGBROOK ROAD; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

 B. Consider (a) acceptance of bids for Park and Ride Bridges, (b) rejection of bids for 

same, and (c) whether bids are excessive or against the best interests of the Village, 

and thus, performance of work by Village is appropriate, pursuant to Wis. Stats. 

sec. 62.15(5). 
 

 C. Consider Resolution #14-14 rejecting bid for Park and Ride Bridge, determining it  

  to be excessive and against the best interests of the Village, and ordering work done  

  by Village under supervision of Public Works Director. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, the Village recently advertised for bidding for a public works project known as the 

park and ride bridge project out of Prairie Springs Park.  This is a DOT project that we received a 

grant through Kenosha County for, and we’ve been working on the design on it for a while now.  

The project was put out to bid.  The engineer’s estimate for that project, just the bridge 

component, not the paving of the parking lot was $384,590.  Bids were advertised.  And only one 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

3 

contractor bid on the project and that was Concrete Structures, Inc.  They bid the project in the 

amount of $661,749.  I believe that’s about a 70 percent over estimate. 

 

Staff reviewed that and we feel that it’s excessive.  There is Wisconsin Statute for a municipality 

62.15 which provides that the Village may reject any bid if the Village finds that the bids are 

fraudulent, inclusive, which we don’t believe, excessive or against the best interest of the Village, 

and it may be by resolution adopted by two thirds of the members who reject the bid received and 

order that the work be done directly by the Village under the supervision of the board of public 

works, and for us that would be the public works director. 

 

At the meeting tonight I guess what I’d like to be able to discuss is the fact that this bid is not in 

the Village’s best interest.  John Steinbrink has gone through the project, and he can show you 

how he framed the project and what his estimated cost for completing the project is.  And if the 

Board approves of that then we would take a look to authorize the project to proceed under John’s 

estimates for what it’s going to take to do the project.  And that we would notify the affected 

contractor that we’re rejecting his bid.   

 

And we also have contract suppliers who have supplied a bid under the premise that that was a 

competitive bid.  Since we didn’t have access with those contractors, we don’t know how good 

those bids are, we have a feeling that they’re high, but there’s still under that statute we can direct 

John to in the worst case scenario accept the bid that were provided to the contractor for materials 

and use those.   

 

Or in the alternative, and we’ve already gone this, is to take all the materials that are going to be 

in the project and put that out to bid a second time since there are more than one bidder that can 

respond to it and see what another bidding gets us.  If we get more suppliers, plus as an additional 

facet of this that materials in this project would be exempt from sales tax which is five and a half 

percent.  So with that I’d like to have John our public works director describe the project and how 

he’s planning to approach it and to get it done and what his estimate of costs are going to be. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, everyone is very excited about this park and ride going 

just over to the south of RecPlex off of Terwall Terrace.  There are really two components of the 

project we’ll be speaking about tonight.  The first one is the pedestrian bridge.  It’s an 80 foot 

structure just across the wetland area.  And then the other one is a little bit larger structure, it’s a 

vehicle bridge. 

 

What I’m going to do is just kind of go through the construction process just so everyone can 

kind of understand what it takes to build a bridge in case you ever want to build a bridge.  And 

it’s probably really good insight just to have.  The earth is excavated on both sides of the footings.  

And this is actually a precast poured in place footing is what this is.  So you can tell the concrete 

is already poured in.  It’s a really a form is all that it is.  This really kind of speeds up the process 

a little bit.  The rebar is set.  And then you have to go through and form everything up and do all 

the work.  If it’s longer than a ten foot section they go through and then they tie the rebar together 

like this gentleman is doing here in the slide.  So if you have 20, 30, 40, in our case a 50 foot 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

4 

footing, you take a couple of the footing pieces and tie them together.  And then the concrete in 

fills all this when it’s done. 

 

Once the footings are in place you start setting the bridge structures over the top with a big crane 

or an excavator.  Once all of the sections are done we’re looking at setting the head wall.  That’s 

that piece that goes over the structure itself.  And then there are different architectural things you 

can do with patterns on the head wall.  That’s really the one that you notice all the time is really 

what’s on the head wall. 

 

To bolt the head wall down -- now keep in mind everything goes together like a bunch of Legos.  

All the holes are pre-drilled; the bolts are all ready to go.  So it’s a very assembly.  This is 

actually the head wall going on top of the bridge structure.  And then they’re just kind of 

fastening it, tightening down the bolts on the last section. 

 

And then on the very end they have kind of have like a wing wall that comes out.  And this is just 

the precast footing for the wing wall.  And then they actually take that wing wall and they set it in 

place.  And then to kind of compensate for the pressure of the earth they have some ballast and 

other weights just in the design of it, and so they’re setting that in place here for the wing walls.  

They’re kind of dropping it right where it goes.  You can see here the bracket.  It’s bolted onto the 

head wall.  There are pre-drilled holes here that are all ready.  And so you drop it in place, you 

bolt it and then you fill everything in with concrete. 

 

When it’s all complete you can see you can go through and take multiple wing walls or abutments 

and bolt them together, set them in place.  There’s like a mastic and a sealer that goes over the top 

of the joints to make sure that as time goes by you don’t have any infiltration or any stones that 

leak through and cause a small hole on top.  And so it’s sealed like with a primer.  There’s a 

mastic tape and then like a manhole mastic that goes around there and holds in place.  And then 

the project is pretty much complete. 

 

So this kind of shows, too, like on the head wall different designs and patterns.  And then what 

will happen is that this will get filled in with stone on both sides.  And then the roadway will be 

put on on top of it.  It’s a pretty fast project.  We have a lot of crews in house in Pleasant Prairie 

that have done a lot of excavations.  Mostly the excavations that our guys were doing for our 

sewer construction crew were down 20, 30 foot deep, wet soils, dewatering, pumping, that’s all 

pretty standard for what we do.  And so when I talk to the guys about doing this and they said 

how deep is the excavation they said it’s about six foot.  They said that’s a piece of cake.  So they 

really shouldn’t have too much of a problem with it.  We have the expertise in house.  We have 

the machinery that we need to do it properly.  And I think we have the experienced staff to make 

a successful project.   

 

And so I can kind of break down what our cost estimate is.  We broke it down between the 

vehicle bridge, that’s the larger one, and the ped bridge.  We estimate that our DPW crews will be 

spending just under $60,000.  Now, that includes labor, all of our vehicle fleet, prices, fuel, 

anything like that, included in there any rental of any equipment that we may have to do.  So just 

under $58,000 for the bridge and the ped bridge just under $28,000. The numbers that we took in 

bid, and we just included them in because that’s really the only number that we have right now, is 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

5 

$259,000 for the bridge precast structure that we have and about $105,000 for the pedestrian 

bridge.  The railings that go on top of there around $32,000 for the vehicle bridge, $10,000 for the 

ped bridge.   

 

Materials - that includes concrete, any sort of stone that we have to do as backfill, any riprap, 

erosion control.  And any sort of miscellaneous things that you may have to have, a little bit of 

drain tile, stuff like that.  $31,600 for the vehicle bridge, ped bridge just about $10,500.  And then 

erosion control breaking up to about $10,000 and just under $500 for the ped bridge.  And that’s 

just all the silt fence and any structures that have to be protected.  And so we’re estimating a total 

for the vehicle bridge, and it’s probably a pretty conservative number, just over $390,000 for the 

vehicle bridge and just over $153,000 for the ped bridge bringing the total estimate of the project 

about $544,300. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

And, again, we think that by going out to bid again on the material based on our initial look at it 

these numbers are very conservative.  We think we can come down on those.  So with that in 

place the Village believes that we can in the worst case scenario save $120,000 over the single 

bid that we received.  And inasmuch based on information I’d recommend that the resolution on 

the top of the second page where it says the Village’s department of public works for $544,300 

would be what we put in that blank by purchasing materials directly and performing labor.  And 

then we would need to identify what -- it needs a three fourths majority vote. 

 

And then in the therefore all purchased made in association with the project will be competitively 

bid.  We do have the option to just use the existing prices that were recommended by the 

contractor that he secured, but it’s not a public, that’s a price that they negotiate individually with 

the suppliers.  I believe we should as we have already put that number out, we would know what 

the number is I believe by June 1st.  Is that right? 

 

Mike Spence: 

 

We’ll be receiving the bids on May 22nd for the June 2nd Board meeting. 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

For the second meeting.  So under 2B I’d recommend all purchases made in association with the 

project will be competitively bid. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

That would be your recommendation for a motion? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Right. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

6 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I so move. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second, with a question. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Do we have to take action on B first? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

That’s what I was going to ask.  C first to reject and then okay? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Well, I guess for the previous item we need a finding that the Board believes that the public 

works department can undertake the project because of the savings that can be achieved in 

overcoming a single source bid. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I don’t have any doubt that they can do it.  That’s a motion for B which I already made. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Further discussion?  Those in favor? 

 

Voices: 

 

Aye. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Opposed?  So carries.  You don’t need a roll call on this one? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No, we do, I’m sorry.  But it’s unanimous.  

 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

7 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Just a question or clarification.  Were all Board members notified of tonight’s meeting? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yeah, I received a call from Clyde saying he couldn’t make it. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO RECEIVE THE SINGLE BID FOR THE PARK AND RIDE 

BRIDGE, REJECT THE BID AS THE BOARD HAS DETERMINED IT IS EXCESSIVE AND 

AGAINST THE BEST INTEREST OF THE VILLAGE AND AUTHORIZE THE VILLAGE’S 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT TO UNDERTAKE THE PROJECT AND COMPETITIVELY 

BID ALL MATERIALS; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; ROLL CALL VOTE – 

STEINBRINK – AYE; KECKLER – AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; SERPE – AYE; MOTION 

CARRIED 4-0. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Now you need a motion to reject on 14? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Yes.  I need a motion on 14 to approve the resolution as presented. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

So moved. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Kris.  Further discussion? 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I’ve got one question.  This is going to be a very heavy structure.  Is this soil stable enough that 

we don’t need to put pylons to support the weight? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yes, it is.  Actually as part of the engineering design they went down and they did a bunch of soil 

borings around the area.  And actually had it structurally engineered out for the amount of stone, 

the depth and the width of the footing, the volume of the concrete that has to go in there to keep 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

8 

in place and then the structure itself.  And so it’s all been engineered and it’s all inspected by a 

registered engineer with R.A. Smith. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Okay, thank you.  That was my concern. 

 

Kris Keckler: 

 

And we’re still expected to maintain the listed time frame for completion? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yes, we are. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Further discussion? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Is there an engineer overlooking this or, John, are you overlooking this? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No, we’ll have an engineer, an inspector from R.A. Smith that’s watching it.  And then the State 

will have somebody.  I don’t know if it’s an environment engineer, but there’s going to be a lot of 

eyes on this naturally.  But we will be contracting with the design engineer to perform the 

inspection on our crews as well as John will be out there, too. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

And one of the other things that we added in the bid specification is to make sure that whoever 

does receive the bid if it’s awarded to someone per this contract that they have someone qualified 

on staff onsite.  And so someone from the company that builds it will be there just to help us out 

in case we have any issues with it. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Is this also a roll call? 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

Yes.  We had a motion and a second, right? 

 



Village Board Meeting 

May 12, 2014 

 

 

9 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #14-14 REJECTING THE BID 

FOR PARK AND RIDE BRIDGE, DETERMINING IT TO BE EXCESSIVE AND AGAINST THE 

BEST INTERESTS OF THE VILLAGE, AND ORDERING WORK DONE  BY VILLAGE  

UNDER SUPERVISION OF PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR; SECONDED BY KECKLER; ROLL 

CALL VOTE – KECKLER – AYE; SERPE – AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; STEINBRINK – 

AYE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; 

MOTION CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 5:50 P.M. 



 

1 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 
Pleasant Prairie, WI   

May 19, 2014 
6:00 p.m. 

 
 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, May 19, 2014.  
Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Kris Keckler, 
Steve Kumorkiewicz and Mike Serpe. Clyde Allen was excused.  Also present were Tom Shircel, Assistant 
Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; 
Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue Chief; Rocco Vita, Village Assessor; Mike 
Spence, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and Recreation 
Director; Dan Honore', IT Director; Sandro Perez, Inspection Superintendent and Jane M. Romanowski, 
Village Clerk. Six citizens attended the meeting. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. PRESENTATION OF A MONETARY DONATION BY THE PLEASANT PRAIRIE FIRE & 

RESCUE ASSOCIATION TO THE WOUNDED WARRIOR PROJECT. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Chief? 
 
Chief McElmury: 
 

We have a check from the Fire & Rescue Association for a program I’ll let Brian describe that he 
came up with here two years ago.  Unfortunately we appear not to have a representative of the 
Wounded Warrior Project here to present it to.  So I guess we’ll just do a short presentation and hear 
what it took to get this, and then we’ll arrange to get the check to them at a later time.  Brian, you 
want to come up? 

 
Brian: 
 

I didn’t know I was speaking.  Well, pretty much we just basically put together kind of a fundraiser 
for wounded vets who come back from Iraq who are unable to help each other out.  And basically we 
started selling red shirts.  A lot of you guys bought them throughout the Village.  And basically what 
we did is we raised $1,000 off the actual money throughout the year, actually about two years.  It 
was sold throughout the community to the Village residents [inaudible] and also vets would stop in 
and get stuff off. They sold them at the VFW and also the Cafe at TruValue and now it’s Festival 
Foods.  That’s pretty much all it was.  But we had somebody that was supposed to meet us here 
today from the VFW post, Paul Fredericksen and also a gentlemen from the Wounded Warriors but 
he isn’t here. 

 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

2 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Maybe they’re going to show up yet.  We’ll take a moment and do the presentation if they come. 
 
Chief McElmury: 
 

Something I’d like to comment on.  Brian spearheaded the project.  It was his idea.  He took care of 
finding a source for the shirts, arranged for the sales, did the advertising, and he put together the 
whole program.  So he’s credited for the whole program [inaudible]. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And if they make it here we will stop and we will do a presentation then if they come. 
 
5. PRESENTATION BY POLICE CHIEF DAVE SMETANA ACKNOWLEDGING THE 

ACTIONS AND DEDICATION OF FIVE POLICE OFFICERS. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 

Good evening.  If you guys are okay with it I’m going to kind of tilt the podium this way to address. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Some say this is your better side.  Actually it was Serpe who said that. 
 
Chief Smetana: 
 

Village Board President, Board of Trustees, Village department heads, members of the Police and 
Fire Commission welcome family and friends and Village residents.  Tonight I’m honored to bestow 
several awards to five members of the Pleasant Prairie Police Department.  In all reality I could be 
here every month making these comments.  The five officers you will meet shortly are examples of 
the professionalism and dedication which I witness daily.  In turn, I in turn enjoy representing the 
hard working and caring officers and civilians of the Pleasant Prairie PD.  Before getting to our first 
awards I’d like to thank the Village Board for their continued support and the community we serve 
for your support and the outpouring of positive comments that I receive on a regular basis.   

 
I keep and read every feedback card that I receive, and I share each one with the officer involved in 
the command staff.  Today I reached into the file and randomly pulled out the following cards.  If 
you’ll indulge me I’d like to read a few examples to give you an idea of what happens at the PD.  
Officer Gainer was very prompt, professional, courteous and diplomatic.  This being my first motor 
vehicle accident involving another driver I appreciated his professionalism.  Another reads I 
commend Officer Sexton for his friendliness, professional manner and his sense of humor.  Thanks.  
That came from a municipal judge outside of Pleasant Prairie.   

 
I was involved in a snowmobile accident.  Witnesses called the police.  I can’t say enough good 
things about how professional they were and how well I was treated.  Please congratulate them.  
Thank you.  Office Bommier was very courteous and professional regarding my fender bender.  
More importantly, he was good to the six kids that were with me when I had it.  He kept answering 
every canine question that the kids had.  Thank you.  We wanted to thank all the Pleasant Prairie 
Police Department personnel for your help in returning my wife’s wedding ring.  Thank you again 



 

3 

for a great job.  And Officer Bommier was friendly, professional and helpful.  His manner was a nice 
calming influence after my car accident.  Thank you.  And, finally, always quick, courteous with a 
response.  With confidence the situation will be handled appropriately.  So those are just a sampling 
of the feedback cards that I get on a regular basis. 

 
Effective policing is a team effort, and the men and women of the Pleasant Prairie Police Department 
are grateful for the support we receive from all of you.  Thank you.  Now to move on with our 
awards if I could have Officer Patrick Gainer and Officer Megan Mrnak come forward.  Office 
Mrnak and Officer Pat Gainer will be receiving the life saving award tonight.  On December 23, 
2013 at 05:47 hours, that’s 5:47 in the morning, Officer Megan Mrnak and Officer Patrick Gainer 
were dispatched to Fair Oak Farms on 95th Street on a call of a party who was suffering from a 
possible seizure with difficulty breathing.  Upon Officer Mrnak’s arrive she observed at 57 year old 
male laying on the floor.  She also noted that the party was turning blue.  Officer Mrnak responded 
as her first responder training directed and began to check for a pulse and breathing on the 
unresponsive victim.  Unable to find a pulse and after determining the party was not breathing she 
began CPR. 

 
A company employee brought a defibrillator pack to Officer Mrnak, and she attempted to use that 
AED pack but the device indicated that a shock was not advised.  She continued chest compressions 
and was joined by Officer Gainer at that point.  Together, the two third shift officers continued both 
chest compressions and rescue breaths.  After several sets of compressions the male party struggled 
but took several labored breaths on his own.  Our partners in public safety, the Pleasant Prairie Fire 
& Rescue units arrived on the scene and took over the rescue attempts and were able to transport the 
individual to a medical facility for continue care and treatment.  Despite the care given at the scene 
and the fact that the party was transported to a medical facility, he later succumbed due to the 
medical event. 

 
Tonight we recognize these two officers for responding to a critical situation and responding to their 
training by giving this man his best chance of survival after he suffered from a severe medical event.  
You both exemplify the dedication that we strive for in the Pleasant Prairie Police Department.  
Thank you very much. 

 
Megan, you stay where you’re at.  If I could have Deputy Chief Dave Mogensen, Detective Heather 
Mogensen and Officer Gerry Paul come forward please.  These four letters of commendation have to 
do with the animal abuse case that started in our Village in April of 2013.  I’ll start off with a letter 
of commendation to Deputy Chief Dave Mogensen.  Deputy Chief David Mogensen is recognized 
for his overall supervision, planning and ongoing assistance and organization of the events 
surrounding the animal mistreatment case in April of 2013, from the inception and planning of both 
the search warrant executions and through the animal adoption process which he assisted in 
establishing.  Deputy Chief Mogensen planned the initial and followup search warrants.   

 
He coordinated the efforts of outside agencies such as the ASPCA and ensure that the search 
warrants themselves were executed with the safety of all involved being paramount in the planning.  
His ability for logistical planning was critical during the operations on the property during both 
investigations.  Deputy Chief Mogensen continued to assist long after the investigation commenced.  
Working with interested community members and department personnel he assisted with the 
adoption process and aided in its beginning.  Being ever mindful of available resources Deputy Chief 
Mogensen also explored a grant opportunity with the ASPCA which resulted in a large financial 
grant being awarded to the Pleasant Prairie Police Department to cover overtime costs involved in  
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

4 

the investigation.  The Deputy Chief’s commitment and attention to duty doesn’t end when he leaves  
the building.  Countless hours of work were done outside of his work hours to help bring this 
investigation to the point where it is today.  Congratulations Deputy Chief Dave Mogensen. 

 
Detective Heather Mogensen is being recognized for handling of the animal mistreatment 
investigation from of April of 2013 to the present date.  Detective Mogensen’s investigative skill and 
ability to organize an immense amount of investigative material while coordinating the placement 
and the ongoing care for the variety of animals that were removed from the property defines the 
professionalism which shows in every case she is assigned.  Her involvement in every aspect of this 
case from the initial investigation to the adoption of the animals and spending countless weekends, 
and I know because I saw her out there, preparing the animals for the adoption process were vital to 
the success of this case to date. 

 
Her ability to work through the criminal justice system and with the local farming and equestrian 
community has proven the dedication of the Village to this case and the professionalism of the 
Pleasant Prairie Police Department.  The case exemplified the best of the community policing 
philosophy.  The police acting on behalf and in concert with the community identified an issue and 
worked together to resolve the problem.  Detective Mogensen was and remains at the center of this 
investigation.  And her ability to forge relationships, her dedication to duty and sincere care for the 
welfare of the animals involved made the difference in this case and in our community.  
Congratulations Detective Mogensen. 

 
This is a commendation to both Officers Gerry Paul and Officer Megan Mrnak.  They’re both being 
awarded a letter of commendation for their actions during the 2013 animal abuse investigation as 
well.  In April of 2013 during the early hours of the investigation Officer Gerry Paul assisted by 
using his own farm equipment to make numerous shuttle trips with the animals which were being 
removed from the property to temporary shelters.  His knowledge of the animals provided to be an 
invaluable resource during the search warrant and ensuing investigation.  Once the animals were 
placed and the adoption process began Officer Paul continued to assist through the process with the 
care of the animals and continued through the adoption process by spending countless hours helping 
to prepare the final horses for adoption. 

 
Officer Mrnak is also being recognized for the valuable assistance offered during the animal 
mistreatment investigation through the execution of the search warrant to the assistance to Detective 
Mogensen in the detective division and the caring of the horses and other animals after they were 
removed from the farm and through the end of the adoption process.  May this letter of 
commendation show the appreciation of our department and our community of both Officer Paul and 
officer Mrnak and their dedication and commitment.  Congratulations. 

 
That concludes the awards presentation.  On behalf of the men and women of the Pleasant Prairie 
Police Department I’d like to thank each of you very much.  Thank you.  It’s all yours, sir. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you, sir.  And on behalf of the Village Board and the entire Village I want to say thank you to 
your department and your leadership for all that you do for us.  I’ve stated this before, and I think 
we’ve all stated the professionalism your department shows and your leadership really makes a 
difference.  And we’re a better Village because of it.  And I’ve stated before if people could see what 
goes on during the night and the day and what you folks deal with I think we’d have an even higher 
respect for what you do.  Once again congratulations to you and all your officers. 



 

5 

 
6. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - APRIL 21 AND MAY 5, 2014 
 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE VILLAGE BOARD 
MEETING OF APRIL 21ST AND MAY 5TH, 2014 AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; 
SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
7. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 
Jane Romanowski: 
 

Terry McMahon. 
 
Terry McMahon: 
 

My name is Terry McMahon, 6407 107th Street, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin.  Mr. President and 
members of the Board, with the recent expansion of the industrial park in the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie which I commend most of the people on the Village Planning Commission who have done 
extensive amounts of work there’s going to be a large increase of truck traffic that’s going to be 
coming in and out of the Village with a lot of idling time going to be incurred especially at 
distributorships that are going to be needing to wait for trucks to be loaded or unloaded.  And I 
present to you an item that I think should be given some thought is a no idle clause which is already 
present in many communities around the United States for these people that are sitting in their 
vehicles waiting on their shippers or receivers.  So please look into and help keep the Village green.  
Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you. 
 

Devin Kack: 
 

Hi, my name is Devin Kack, 11000 West Park Place, Milwaukee, Wisconsin.  I’m here to answer 
any questions about the renovation at the Village Hall and also the new fire station.  On behalf of 
myself and the rest of the Plunkett Raysich Architects team and also Dave Riley from Riley 
Construction we just want to say that we’re extremely proud and happy and excited to be working 
with you guys.  We all knew that there were great people here, but tonight really just exemplifies that 
and all the work that’s being done.  So I’m available for any comments. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Alright, thank you.  And when we come to that item if there are questions we will call you forward. 
 
Joseph Goudie: 
 

My name’s Joseph Goudie, 8310 Cooper Road, Kenosha, Wisconsin.  Mr. President and Board 
members we have an issue on Cooper Road that’s been taking place since January 1.  We have had 
southbound and northbound semi traffic very highly at 24 hours a day traveling Cooper Road 
anywheres from Highway 50 all the way down to 93rd.  I’ve made countless calls, non-emergency  
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

6 

calls to the Pleasant Prairie PD, and they’ve done all they can.  I believe they’ve exhausted every 
avenues.  I’m starting to feel that we should involve this as a DOT matter and get the Department of 
Transportation and maybe even the Wisconsin Highway Patrol involved.   

 
Because if you come from Highway 50 and cross the railroad tracks -- I moved back to the area three 
years ago.  Them railroad tracks were brand new.  They have heaved and been so pounded by the 
semi traffic truck that’s been incurring up and down Cooper Road.  You travel it, Mr. President, 
yourself.  You can see that Cooper Road is in very bad shape not due just to the bad winter that 
we’ve had, but the semi truck traffic is not helping it at all.  I seen a truck go by just two nights ago 
that was a petroleum gas tanker.  I mean we don’t want that in our area.  That’s highly, highly 
dangerous.  So if you could please help that in that matter I would greatly appreciate it.  Thank you 
for your time.  Thank you. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Joe, I have a question for you.  Is there a certain time of day that it’s more than others? 
 
Joseph Goudie: 
 

No, sir.  It’s actually 24 hours a day.  I actually witness it from the time that I get home at work until 
three o’clock until the time that I go to work at seven in the morning.  You get up at 3:30 in the 
morning to take a glass of water or whatever have you, and I can see out my front window on Cooper 
Road countless times.  And they’ll be heading southbound or northbound, and also in the afternoons 
and during the day my mother’s at home, and she sees countless truck traffic going up and down the 
road. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

The reason I ask is I travel that road a lot and I have yet to pass a semi. 
 
Joseph Goudie: 
 

Well, you know, sir, I’ve called the PD countless times and they’ve been greatly helpful.  They’re 
polite on the phone and I see them patrol Cooper Road.  But I think now this has become such a 
DOT matter I think south and northbound I think we need to get Wisconsin Highway Patrol 
involved.  Thank you for your time.  I appreciate it. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Alright, thank you. 
 
Josh Hipper: 
 

Hi, I’m Josh Hipper from 9108 Cooper Road.  I’m just here to ask the Board to consider amending 
the ordinance in regards to residential fencing.  I recently submitted a form about replacing my 
fence, and I wanted to replace it with Pro Rib Steel fence.  Comparably to conventional fencing it’s 
got twice as long of a warranty, it lasts longer, looks better, more durable, but our current ordinance 
doesn’t allow for it.  I think they think it’s like a galvanized steel and it’s not.  It’s a powder coated 
rib steel.  It’s the same material that my building’s built out of on my property so it would match.  
Everything would look good, and it would last twice as long as a wood fence with a lot less 



 

7 

maintenance.  So I have any information if anybody wants to see what the material actually is.  
You’re more than welcome to look at it.  So I just ask you to consider changing that ordinance to 
allow for that type of fencing. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Okay, if you want to just give that information to Jean maybe and she’ll make sure we get informed 
on it. 

 
Jane Romanowski: 
 

There are no more signups tonight, Mr. President. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Anyone else wishing to speak under citizens’ comments?  Yes, Your Honor. 
 
Richard Ginkowski: 
 

Municipal Judge Richard Ginkowski.  I see the work of the Pleasant Prairie Police Department every 
week.  They write over 5,000 tickets a year, and I look at every one of them.  And I have a bird’s eye 
view from that perspective of things that go on in the community, things that many people just don’t 
realize probably happens here.  And by and large they’re very response and try their best consistent 
with their available resources. 

 
But Chief Smetana was both right and wrong this evening.  He understated the work that was done in 
the horse farm issue.  Prior to taking office I worked on that case with the Pleasant Prairie Police 
Department when I was in the District Attorney’s office.  I drafted those warrants.  I also was on the 
scene.  And the work that was done under conditions that nobody in this room would have wanted to 
experience was outstanding.  And not just by the four individuals that were mentioned but the 
Mogensen’s, Deputy Chief Mogensen did, in fact, put an enormous amount of time into this effort as 
did Heather Mogensen, Detective Mogensen.  The work that was done by the officers, more than just 
two, but Gerry Paul certainly lent not only his physical resources to get people there, but Megan 
Mrnak’s job in large measure was to photograph and document and gather evidence of a very, very 
complicated investigation under very trying conditions.   

 
I can tell you myself I was only there a small fraction of the time that they were, and I let my boots 
that I wore sit for three months before I ever put them back on again.  The mud, the deteriorating 
conditions that they had to go through out there certainly it was not something any of us would have 
wanted to go through.  I’m very I should say pleased with the work that was done.  But also the 
Chief’s commendation is actually understated.  It’s more than that.  There was a lot of work done not 
only by those individuals who are mentioned who did put in all those extra hours but by the other 
officers and people in the community and other officials as well that worked on this.  It was a team 
effort, and everyone involved deserves congratulations.  Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you.  Anyone else wishing to speak?  Hearing none I’m going to close citizens’ comments. 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

8 

8. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
 A. Consider a two year contract agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and 

the Village of Pleasant Prairie Police Officers Association, Local 185 of the Wisconsin 
Professional Police Association, Inc. for the 2014-2015 calendar years. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Move to take this off the table. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Is there a representative of the -- 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

I’ll be presenting.  Thank you, Mr. President, and Village Trustees.  Before you tonight is the two 
year contract 2014-2015 agreement between the Village of Pleasant Prairie and the Wisconsin Police 
Officers Association Local 185.  After several months of negotiations we do have a signed contract 
by the union and it’s before you tonight.  I’ll go through some of the more significant changes that 
occurred. 

 
John Steinbrink: 

Maybe before we go any farther we had a motion by Mike, second by Kris, and we need to vote on 
untabling it.  All in favor? 

 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries.  Go ahead, Tom. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Thank you.  I’ll go over some of the more significant changes that this contract involves for the next 
two years.  The first one is Section 8.01 which is wages.  There will be an increase according to 
Schedule A by 2 percent effective January of this year.  And then similarly January of next year, 
January 1, 2015, there will be a similar increase of a 2 percent wage increase.  Secondly, the 
Wisconsin Retirement System contribution effective as the date of ratification of this settlement by 
the Village and Local 185 all employees shall contribute 6.5 percent of the employee’s contribution 
required by the Wisconsin Retirement System.  And effective January 1, 2015 all employees shall 
contribute the full amount required by Wisconsin Retirement System for general service employees. 



 

9 

 
The next item of significance is health insurance.  Effective January 1, 2014 employees will 
contribute 5 percent towards their insurance premiums.  Effective as of the date of ratification 
employees shall contribute 3 percent towards their health insurance premium.  Employees who 
achieve and maintain a silver status under the Village’s wellness program through Humana by 
December 1, 2014 shall contribute 3 percent towards the health insurance program.   

 
Employees who elect not to participate in a Village wellness program and do not achieve silver 
status as of November 30th of this year shall contribute 20 percent towards their health insurance 
premium throughout 2015.  So that’s sort of a negative aspect obviously if you don’t get to the silver 
status in our wellness program.  Those increases towards our insurance premiums would go up to 20 
percent.  Employees who achieve silver status between December 1st and 31st of this year shall 
contribute 20 percent towards the health insurance premium through the month of January 2015, and 
then that shall revert to a 3 percent premium contribution as of February 1, 2015.  And that’s due to 
the paperwork involved to catch up on that premium reduction. 

 
As far as dental insurance is concerned employees are to pay 10 percent of their premium through 
payroll deduction.  And residency, employees covered under this agreement shall reside within 15 
miles of the jurisdictional boundaries of the Village.  Newly hired bargaining unit employees shall 
establish such residency within 24 months of their date of hire.  And then finally, again, this is for a 
two year contract from January 1st of this year through December 31st of next year, 2015.  If you 
have any questions I’ll be happy to answer them. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I don’t have any questions, Tom, but I can tell you it’s getting very difficult to negotiate contracts 
today with the atmosphere the way it is in the State.  I commend the police officers for coming to 
terms with the Village.  And it’s getting harder and harder, and I’m glad they came to an agreement. 
 

Kris Keckler: 
 

I had a question about the reimbursement policy in there for continuing education credits.  And I 
don’t know if anybody could speak about that.  I just wanted to clarify that it is full reimbursement 
for courses.  I just wondered if there was any information regarding the annual expenditures that the 
Village usually incurs with that.  It’s not necessary tonight.  I just didn’t know if you knew that off 
the top of your head. 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Off the top of my head no.  We can get back to you on that, though. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Thanks. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

This was agreed to by the association now? 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

10 

Tom Shircel: 
 

It was, yes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

He’s been back in town? 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Yes, it’s been signed just before the meeting tonight. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE TWO YEAR CONTRACT AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE AND THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 185 OF THE WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL 
POLICE ASSOCIATION, INC. FOR THE 2014-2015 CALENDAR YEARS; SECONDED BY 
KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #14-11 to amend 

the 2035 Comprehensive Plan for the proposed development of vacant properties 
generally located at the southeast corner of CTH H and 116th Street. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President, I would ask if Items A, B and C could be taken up at the same time.  I’ll make one 
presentation, and then separate action would be needed by the Board. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

So moved. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Second. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve that Items A, B and C be taken up at the same time.   
 
 B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Certified Survey Map to re-

divide the properties generally located at the southeast corner of 116th Street and 88th 
Avenue in LakeView South. 

 
 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #14-12 for a 

Zoning Map Amendment for the industrial development of the vacant properties 
generally located in the southeast corner of CTH H and 116th Street.  

 
 



 

11 

Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, we have three items on the agenda tonight that are related 
to the Centerpoint WisPark Land Company II LLC property which is located at that southeast corner 
of Highway H and 116th Street.  The three items include the Comprehensive Plan amendments, 
Ordinance 14-11, certified survey map and a zoning map amendment which is Ordinance #14-12. 

 
Specifically the first item on the agenda that I’d like to talk about is the Comprehensive Plan 
amendment.  This is a matter that was before the Village Plan Commission last week Monday for a 
public hearing.  And this development is included as part of the Green Hill Farms Neighborhood 
Plan.    And as you know prior to making any modifications or changes to the Village zoning 
ordinance we do need to make sure that the Comprehensive Plan is in line with that particular zoning 
map or zoning text amendment. 

 
So at the very southeast corner of Highway H and 116th Street there are two modifications that need 
to be made.  And this is based on two retention basins that are being construction, one that’s just 
right at the southeast corner, and then one that is just to the straight south of that just east of 88th 
Avenue just south of the high tension lines which is identified in purple.  So the Village does require 
that our stormwater retention basins are identified as other open space areas, and they’re placed into 
a Park and Recreational District.  So as part of this amendment we are just modifying the 
Comprehensive Plan slightly to reflect the two outlots that will be used for stormwater management.   

 
Again, this is a project that went before the Village Plan Commission.  It’s for the construction of 
two at this time speculative warehouse/distribution type facilities at that southeast corner.  The 
detailed site and operational plans went before the Village Plan Commission as well.  Again, as 
shown on the slide and the certified survey map that’s next to that, the two outlots, Outlot 1 and 
Outlot 2, would then be put into the Park and Recreational and other open space classification.  
Again, a separate roll call vote would be required on that particular matter. 

 
With respect to the certified survey map you have before you it is intended to redivide the two 
properties by creating two lots and two outlots, again, for that industrial development I referenced.  
Lot 1 is proposed to be 25.36 acres with over 1,100 feet of frontage on 88th Avenue.  And Lot 2 is 
proposed to be 28.56 acres with over 400 feet of frontage on 116th Street.  The two outlots would 
then be also used for stormwater management purposes. 

 
The staff recommends approval of all three items that you have before you.  Again, this was 
discussed in detail at the Plan Commission meeting.  If there are any questions I’d be happy to 
answer them.  But, again, we’ve got three items that are up for consideration this evening for the 
project.  Sorry, I forgot to mention the last item.  That was the zoning map amendment.  And, again, 
this area is already zoned M-2, General Manufacturing District.  The area that is zoned A-2 to the 
south would be put into the M-2 District.  The outlots would be placed in the PR-1 District.  
Anything that is currently zoned C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy District, will remain 
unchanged. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Okay, first item, Item A. 
 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND  APPROVE ORDINANCE #14-11 TO AMEND THE 2035 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT OF VACANT PROPERTIES 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

12 

GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF CTH H AND 116TH STREET; 
SECONDED BY SERPE; ROLL CALL VOTE: JOHN STEINBRINK, AYE; KRIS KECKLER, 
AYE; STEVE KUMORKIEWICZ, AYE; MIKE SERPE, AYE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion carries.  Next is Item B, certified survey map. 
 
 

SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
AND APPROVE A CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO RE-DIVIDE THE PROPERTIES GENERALLY 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 116TH STREET AND 88TH AVENUE IN 
LAKEVIEW SOUTH; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries.  That brings us to Item C. 
 
KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE ORDINANCE #14-12 FOR A ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENT FOR THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE VACANT PROPERTIES 
GENERALLY LOCATED IN THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF CTH H AND 116TH STREET.; 
SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 
 D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Certified Survey Map to 

subdivide the vacant property located at the 11000 block of 88th Avenue in LakeView 
Corporate Park into two parcels.  

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board and the audience, this is a request for a certified survey 
map.  Again, this particular CSM as well as the site and operational plan were presented to the Plan 
Commission at their last meeting.  The petitioner is proposing to subdivide a 28.5 acre property 
generally located in the 11000 block of 88th Avenue within the LakeView Corporate Park into two 
parcels, and to develop the 22.8 acre parcel with the construction of a 377,472 square foot bottling 
facility to be known as Niagara Bottling.  Niagara is a family owned and operated company since 
1963.  Niagara is the largest private labeled bottle water supplier in the United States. 

 
Specifically, again, they’re looking to create two parcels of land.  They would have their access 
directly from Highway H or 88th Avenue on the north end.  There will be an emergency cross-access 
that’s actually going to be to the north.  The facility will be constructed basically hopefully under 
construction in the next few weeks.  And they’re looking to finish or complete the facility sometime 
in November to start production.  The Plan Commission recommended approval of the site and 
operational plans, and they also recommended approval to the Village Board of the certified survey 
map, and the staff is doing the same subject to the comments and conditions.  And actually all of the 
conditions have been addressed with respect to the certified survey map. And we have the original 
document with us this evening. 

 
 



 

13 

KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION AND APPROVE CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP TO SUBDIVIDE THE 
VACANT PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 11000 BLOCK OF 88TH AVENUE IN LAKEVIEW 
CORPORATE PARK INTO TWO PARCELS; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-
0. 
 
 E. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider an Affidavit to correct the 

legal description on Certified Survey Map 2747 for the properties located at the 
northeast corner of 104th Avenue and 77th Street within the Prairie Ridge 
development. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a correction document that’s being presented to the 
Village Board.  There is a legal description that had been prepared for the Regner Veterinary Clinic 
which is identified as certified survey map 2747.  The properties are located at the northeast corner 
of 104th Avenue and 77th Street in the Prairie Ridge Development.  When the document was 
recorded at the Register of Deeds office they had made a determination at the land information office 
that the legal description was inaccurate and they needed to correct some of the distances and 
bearings on the particular legal description.  So the purpose of this request is an affidavit of 
correction to that CSM 2747.  This property correction has been before the Village Plan 
Commission, and they recommended approval, and the same recommends the same of the Village 
Board. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Jean, these corrections have no adverse effect on the development of that property, right? 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

None. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
AND APPROVE AN AFFIDAVIT TO CORRECT THE LEGAL DESCRIPTION ON CERTIFIED 
SURVEY MAP 2747 FOR THE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF 
104TH AVENUE AND 77TH STREET WITHIN THE PRAIRIE RIDGE DEVELOPMENT; 
SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 F. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider an amendment to the Access 

Restriction for Lot 163 in Village Green Heights Addition #1.  
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the Village Green development was a subdivision that 
started construction 2003 to 2004 almost in the center of the Village of Pleasant Prairie just to the 
west of where we are here.  There are a number of lots that were created up and down Cooper Road 
extending from Highway 165 to the north which would be mid quarter section.  And at that time the 
original intent was any lots possible that could access off of a side street that we wanted them to 
access the side street because Cooper Road was acting as a collector for the Village, a collector 
street.  

 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

14 

This is one of the final lots in this initial part of this development.  And when it came down to it and 
plans were submitted they asked for their access to be on Cooper Road.  Well, there was a plat 
restriction that restricted no access on Cooper Road and that their access would need to be on 98th 
Street.  But when we reviewed the engineering plans and consulting with the Village engineer it was 
designed and the topographic information was prepared so that access would come out to Cooper 
Road because there is approximately a five foot fall, five foot elevation difference.  And to try to turn 
that house to face it to 98th Street or turn that driveway that large elevation change would have come 
through the center of the house.  It would have been very difficult, if not impossible, to try to 
construct that house. 

 
So the staff, Village engineer as well as Village planning staff, do recommend that this access 
restriction be removed and that they be allowed to place their driveway as indicated on the plat.  The 
staff recommends approval as presented. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Jean, what I’m concerned about is that we’re not setting up precedent that could happen in the future 
in another property that’s going to be built in Cooper Road.  I’ve got a problem with that. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

And I understand that.  And we do have a few cases here and there, I think this is the second one that 
I can recall in the last 20 years that this has happened to.  But I sat down with our Village engineers, 
and we are really going to make a much more concerted effort to make sure that every corner lot that 
we look at them very carefully and that they look at the grading plans.  I mean the grading plans and 
the engineering plans had it laid out that it was to access off of Cooper Road.  So there just was a 
conflict between the plat and the engineering plans.  And we want to correct that.  And we’ll look at 
that very closely.  There are other lots that connect to Cooper Road.  But we’re trying to minimize 
the connections to the local arterial. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

So in the future those are going to be avoided [inaudible]. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

That will be our attempt. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Thank you. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
AND APPOVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE ACCESS RESTRICTION FOR LOT 163 IN VILLAGE 
GREEN HEIGHTS ADDITION #1; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0.  
 
 G. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider a Master Conceptual Plan for 

the redevelopment of the Village Hall property located at 9915 39th Avenue, including 
the relocation of Fire Station #1 to the adjacent property located at the southeast 
corner of 39th Avenue and Springbrook Road. 



 

15 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board and the audience, we have two items on the agenda tonight 
related to this project.  The first is the master conceptual plan, and the second are zoning text and 
map amendments, Ordinance #14-13 and 14-14.  The Village of Pleasant Prairie is requesting 
approval of master conceptual plan and zoning text and map amendments regarding the 
redevelopment of the Village Campus located at 9915 39th Avenue. 

 
The development of the Village Campus includes the property at the Village Hall as well as a 
rectangular shaped property just to the north/northeast of the Village Hall that the Village recently 
acquired.  This also includes expanded parking areas to the north as well as reconstruction of 100th 
Street and 38th Avenue, and Mike is going to be my Vanna.  And landscaping, sidewalks, 
stormwater management facilities and, again, primarily the relocation of Fire Station #1 to the 
northern portion of this site. 

 
The Village Board previously approved a certified survey map in order to combine these properties 
and to dedicate the right of way as needed for both 39th Avenue and Springbrook Road.  The 
development of the new Fire Station #1 and the associated Village Campus improvements will create 
a unified government-like campus for the community.  The new fire station will provide 
accommodations for future increases in fire and rescue personnel, and will also provide for the much 
needed apparatus bay for emergency vehicle storage.  The construction of the pedestrian plazas and 
sidewalks along with public streets in the interior of the site will provide increased walking and 
bicycling opportunities and will integrate well with the planned walkable future Village Green 
Center retail area to be located just to the west of the Village Hall property west of 39th Avenue.   

 
Upon completion of the relocation of the Fire Station #1 to its new location the interior of the 
existing fire station area will be renovated into a new Village Hall auditorium and meeting space.  In 
addition, the parking lot will be constructed south of the Village Hall, and a small vestibule-type 
entrance will be on the south end which will lead to the new auditorium on the south end of the 
Village Hall. 

 
So from early summer, early winter 2015 39th Avenue will also be under construction.  It will be 
reconstructed from north of 104th Street extending north to about 97th Street.  This section of 39th 
Avenue will have an urban profile, curb and gutter profile, with two travel lanes, bicycle lanes and 
ten foot wide sidewalks, parallel parking and a roundabout at the Springbrook Road intersection.  As 
previously noted the two existing 39th Avenue driveways to the Village Campus will be permanently 
closed.  So the north entrance just out from these doors and then the southern entrance which was the 
entrance to the fire department both of those will be permanently closed.  And the Village Hall 
entrance will come off of Springbrook Road just south of the fire department entrance.  And then 
there will be a secondary entrance right on 100th Street and also at 38th Avenue from the rear of the 
facility. 

 
This evening we have some zoning maps and text amendments that need to be approved.  The 
current zoning is I-4, Institutional District, and B-2 (UHO) which is Urban Landholding Overlay 
District.  Primarily the area to the north of the Village Hall is currently zoned commercial.  The 
proposed zoning is to have all the entire property under the I-1, Institutional District, with a Planned 
Unit Development Overlay.  Again, the intent is to develop a unified Village Campus which will be 
developed and enhanced as an integrated system with shared parking areas, sidewalks, driveways,  
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

16 

maneuvering lanes, stormwater management and a cohesive landscaping throughout our 
development.  There will be a similar architectural style between the Village Hall and the new fire 
station including roofing materials and exterior building materials. 

 
So in order to move forward with the planned unit development and have a more unified government 
campus appearance and walkable community we needed to modify a couple of dimensional 
requirements in the zoning ordinance as part of the PUD, some minor modifications.  The first is the 
zoning ordinance requires a minimum setback of 65 feet from the right of way of 39th Avenue and 
Springbrook Road to the buildings.  With the additional right of way that has dedicated for 39th 
Avenue and Springbrook we’re not needing that setback.  So we are looking for a modification of the 
setback to 39.7 feet.  

 
The second is the minimum spacing between driveways as measured from center line to center line 
based upon the roadway speeds.  And typically the driveways should be spaced at about 300 feet 
apart.  But they will be only spaced at 200 feet apart.  Again, the intent is the northern driveway for 
the fire station is adjacent to the apparatus bays, and that’s where the vehicles will be coming out.  
So it’s not going to be a heavily trafficked driveway coming from the fire department for the trucks. 

 
The third modification requires a maximum driveway width of 35 feet.  As you know with the 
apparatus bay we do need to increase that width of the driveway to 60 feet.  With the large pumpers 
and ladder trucks that need to exit the facility in a timely manner we needed to widen that profile of 
that driveway exiting onto Springbrook Road. 

 
A fourth requires that all parking areas, maneuvering lanes be set back a minimum of 20 feet to the 
property lines and right of way.  Again, due to the large amount of right of way that’s being 
dedicated on Springbrook that will be reduced down to approximately nine feet.  There will be a 
large green space area that’s in between, but to the actual right of way line it will be reduced.  And 
then finally the last modification to the ordinance deals with some of the architectural standards with 
respect to roofing materials.  And so in order to create that unified development and appearance 
architecturally we are going to have a similar style roof on the fire station as the Village Hall.  Not so 
much a mansard roof but it will be more of the green standard C metal roof. 

 
So what I’d like to do is briefly just show you some of the slides that were presented at the Village 
Plan Commission meeting if you did not see any of those slides.  As you can see, the Village Hall, 
the north central part of that slide, and then the fire station is to the east/northeast of that location.  
We will have four separate parking lots between the two facilities, one that’s dedicated.  Lot 4 is 
more dedicated to the fire station, lot 1 to the daily patrons of the Village Hall, lot 2 also to the 
patrons of the Village Hall, and then lot 3 is more of the Village Hall employee lot.  In addition, 
there will be a lot at the south end which will be able to be used for Village vehicles as well as those 
attending any of the auditorium-related activities. 

 
Again, you can see in the background or the north side the relocated roadway for 39th Avenue, the 
new roundabout that’s proposed and newly reconstructed Springbrook Road.  We are also making 
modifications directly to 100 street as well as to 38th Avenue as the rear access to both facilities.  
And you can see there’s multiple points of access for each of the driveways.  In addition at the very 
southeast corner of the property there will be a stormwater retention facility that will be constructed 
by the Village in order to hand stormwater for the entire campus that we’ve been creating. 

 
So the two items before the Village Board include both the master conceptual plan as well as the 
zoning text and map amendment.  And, again, all of the site and operational plans that were 



 

17 

approved by the Village Plan Commission on May 12th they’re all contingent upon these approvals 
of the Village Campus buildings and the site improvements this evening. 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Mr. President, just for clarification, Jean, I think you mentioned as part of the PUD that the building 
setback along 39th would be a specific dimension.  But I think the intent of the PUD is to go to a 
zero setback along 39th so it would mimic the west side of 39th Avenue with the future Village 
Green development.  I think that was the intent.  Correct me if I’m wrong. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

My notes say 9.3 feet. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Oh, no, this was for the building setback along 39th. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Oh, yes. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

You had mentioned a specific distance.  I think it’s going to be zero for the PUD. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

For the Village Hall? 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

For the Village Hall or any future buildings to mimic the west side of the future Village Green 
Center. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Okay, I’ll make a change to the staff comments then. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

I think the slide represents a zero setback. 
 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

Okay. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Thank you. 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

18 

Michael Serpe: 
 

This project I think it’s larger than what we realize.  And it addresses a multitude of things that the 
Village really needs.  Parking for the Village Hall is one.  The court, this will be the courtroom with 
an office for the judge, an office for the Village attorney to hold his pre-trial conferences, another 
polling place, fire station that’s sorely needed, stormwater management that’s needed in this area, 
improved roads, safer traffic pattern with the roundabouts and the new Village Hall and meeting 
rooms. This project is large, and it’s going to address a whole lot of needed items.   

 
And I have to give the staff and Dave and our consultant a lot of credit for putting this together and 
still addressing the concerns of the neighbors to the east of the new fire station.  That it’s going to be 
far enough away where it’s really not going to impact on them very much.  The landscaping that’s 
going to be taking place is going to be attractive.  So I think this is a great project for the Village, and 
I’m looking forward to seeing it come to fruition. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Especially the drainage issue.  That was an issue in this area.  Plus adding another voting place to the 
area right here is going to make me come and vote here.  I’m on 3rd Avenue and State Line not to go 
to the RecPlex as I’m going right now.  Still I’m going to the RecPlex?   I told my wife that. 

 
SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

AND APPROVE A MASTER CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 
VILLAGE HALL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9915 39TH AVENUE, INCLUDING THE 
RELOCATION OF FIRE STATION #1 TO THE ADJACENT PROPERTY LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 39TH AVENUE AND SPRINGBROOK ROAD; SECONDED BY 
KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I have one question.  First I’d also like to commend everybody that’s had a hand in this.  It really is a 
huge undertaking.  I know adjustments have had to be made for various conditions and certainly a lot 
of hard work that everybody’s put into it.  Certainly my bathroom remodel pales in comparison to 
something like this.  I did have one question, though, related to with the potential for increased 
traffic and use of the Village Hall as well as for the fire station can you elaborate at all about the 
change in signage or communication out front.  Tom was elaborating a little bit that the fire station is 
getting a new address but the Village address is staying the same.  But if there going to be conflicting 
signage that might be close in proximity at least on Springbrook Road or out on the site, or has that 
not been finalized yet as far as anybody else that might be coming to the Village Hall for purposes? 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

I guess I’ll start.  The Village Hall monument sign will actually stay in its approximate location.  We 
are going to be shifting it a little bit to the east.  There’s probably going to be some other type of 
directional sign down at the corner to redirect people, small secondary sign that might direct them 
into the parking lot.  But the fire station sign is being relocated so it no longer will be on the south 
end where their main driveway entrance is.  That will be on the north end.  And there will be some 
signage along 38th Avenue that basically says Village Hall here, ahead fire department only, 
restricted access, something to that effect.   

 



 

19 

And there will be some identifying signage right at the entrance as you turn on Springbrook Road to 
identify where the Village Hall entrance is versus you trying to turn into the firemen’s bays to come 
into the Village Hall.  So it will be not as aggressive signage, but there will be smaller secondary-
type signage to help give that direction to someone who is coming to vote, coming to get a permit, 
someone’s trying to come to Village Hall for a public hearing.  That information will be out there, 
and we’ll make sure that there are some smaller directional signs to give that direction to the public. 

 
Kris Keckler: 

Very good.  With the new features that you’re taking advantage of I think that will help.  Thank you. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

And if I could just add to that, too, there will be another sign off of Springbrook that this is Village 
Hall employee and visitor entrance.  So there will also be a sign on Springbrook as well. 

 
Tom Shircel: 
 

And just to add to that, the addresses like you said will stay the same, 9915 for the Village Hall.  And 
the new address for the fire station is 3801 Springbrook.  And with the roundabout going in at 39th 
and Springbrook there will be some preemption for the fire vehicles as they come out of the station 
onto Springbrook Road.  I think the preemption will be at all four legs of the roundabout whereby 
there will be a warning light that comes on to warn vehicle traversing that roundabout that yes, 
indeed, there is emergency vehicles existing the fire station so slow down and be forewarned. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

One last question.  The new access here for the Village Hall on the north side is going to be aligned 
with Gordy’s pretty much? 

 
Mike Spence: 
 

Yes.  It’s directly across from the existing driveway to Gordy’s so there won’t be a jog in the 
intersection there. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Okay, thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We had a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Just that a public hearing was held at the 
Plan Commission meeting.  Peggy did a great job and Dave was there to answer questions.  And you 
also were there.  Do you have anything to add to it?  I think it was pretty well covered at the Plan 
Commission.  Neighbors got input, everybody got a kick at the cat so to say.  Those in favor? 

 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

20 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries. 
 
 H. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinances #14-13 and #14-

14 for a Zoning Text and Zoning Map Amendments to rezone the property at the 
southeast corner of 39th Avenue and Springbrook Road and 9915 39th Avenue. 

 
Jean Werbie-Harris: 
 

I covered that entire presentation.  We are looking to modify the zoning from the B-2 (UHO) to the 
I-1 (PUD). 

 
SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

AND APPROVE ORDINANCES #14-13 AND #14-14 FOR A ZONING TEXT AND ZONING MAP 
AMENDMENTS TO REZONE THE PROPERTY AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF 39TH 
AVENUE AND SPRINGBROOK ROAD AND 9915 39TH AVENUE; SECONDED BY KECKLER; 
MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 I. Consider a Developer Agreement between the Village and 88th Avenue Properties, Inc. 

for the development of the proposed Niagara bottling project. 
 
Tom Shircel: 
 

Thank you, Mr. President and Board members.  This is an agreement between the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie and 88th Avenue properties for the Niagara project.  And I know Mike Pollocoff and Derieth 
Sutton and Janelle Granger from Niagara have been working on this over the past two weeks very 
diligently.  So tonight I put together a series of slides to help present this development agreement to 
the Board.  Again, this agreement is intended to provide for certain duties and responsibilities of the 
developer which is 88th Avenue Properties or Niagara for this specific project. 

 
Just a brief overview.  Niagara Bottling Company is the largest family owned and operated bottled 
water company in the United States.  Their Pleasant Prairie site is Lot 75 in LakeView Corporate 
Park, and it’s part of Tax Parcel Number 92-4-122-283-0305.  The parcel size as indicated by Jean 
earlier this evening with the CSM is approximately 22.8 cares.  It’s located within Tax Increment 
District Number 2, zoned M-2.  Proposed number of employees is 41 at startup, and 75 to 105 at full 
capacity.  And the estimated Village impact fees for this project are not to exceed $75,000. 

 
The Village intends to reimburse 88th Avenue Properties which is the developer up to a maximum 
amount for certain eligible costs incurred by the developer in conjunction with certain impact fees 
that are required for development of the Niagara project to provide incentive for the developer.  The 
Village has agreed to petition the Wisconsin Public Service Commission for reduction of the 
Village’s water rates based on the Niagara project’s anticipated water usage and shall reduce the 
sanitary sewer user charges based upon the Niagara not generating excessive BODs or other solids. 

 
For property ownership the obligations of the developer under this agreement will be contingent 
upon the developer providing written notice to the Village that the developer has actually, indeed, 
acquired the property 60 days after closing.  As you can see on the slide the Niagara property is  
 
 



 

21 

highlighted in the red.  As part of the agreement the construction time line the developer shall 
substantially complete the construction of the building for the Niagara project no later than three 
years after the closing date of the property. 

 
For public utilities the developer shall install municipal water services from the water utility valve 
located at the property’s property line to the building.  And also the developer shall install the 
sanitary sewer service from the building to the property line.  So those will be the responsibilities of 
Niagara.  Again, that’s to bring the services from the service box at the property line to the building. 

 
Pertaining to water and sanitary sewer rates, the agreement divides this project into two phases.  
Phase 1 involves production lines 1 and 2, and then in approximately year 2017 Niagara plans on 
adding a possible additional future two production lines.  So based on that the volume of water used 
for Phase 1 it’s anticipated that Niagara will consume approximately 900,000 gallons per day on 
average.  And once Phase 2 is enacted that would go up to 2 million gallons per day.  And just to put 
that in perspective the Village water usage currently is about 2.3 million gallons per day.  So upon 
full development they’ll almost double the usage of water in the Village.  As far as wastewater 
discharge is concerned with Phase 1 Niagara anticipates the discharge up to a quarter million gallons 
per day on average.  And upon Phase 2 a half a million gallons per day on average.   

 
The Village shall advocate for and make applications and petition Wisconsin Public Service 
Commission, PCS, for reduction of the Village’s water rates to a special water rate class for each 
phase of the project.  And for the sewer the Village shall reduce the charge for sanitary sewer volume 
user charges based upon the Niagara project not discharging excessive suspended solids, BODs, 
phosphorous or other solids into the Village’s sanitary sewer system.  It’s important to note that with 
any proposed Village rate change the PSC is the sole and final authority in the decision.  The Village 
believes there will be some level of downward impact on the Village consumers as far as water is 
concerned and sewer, but exactly how much that reduction is still unknown. 

 
So getting specifically to the water rates, for Phase 1 we’re looking at $2.25 per thousand gallons.  
And, again, that’s based on the 900,000 proposed gallons per day usage.  And just to compare that’s 
less than the current lowest rate of $2.56 per thousand gallons that the Village charges right now.  
And for Phase 2 that would go down when they enact those two other lines, go from two lines to four 
production lines, that would go down to $2 per thousand gallons based on, again, the 2 million 
gallons per day.  The Village shall make every effort possible to advocate for and secure the lowest 
possible rate for the Niagara project. 

 
As far as sanitary sewer rates go, again, Phase 1 with a quarter million gallons per day of usage, 
discharge I should say, we’re looking at $4.40 per thousand gallons which is less than the current 
$5.70 which is the rate for all users in the Village.  And for Phase 2 when they go to a half million 
gallons per day of discharge that rate would go down to $3.15 per thousand gallons.  And that rate 
would then be in effect for all users in the Village.  So as you can see there will be a significant 
impact from this Niagara project to all water and sewer users in the Village. 

 
Some other parameters of this development agreement include impact fees.  The Village shall rebate 
the developer for a total amount of Village impact fees, and that’s not to exceed $75,000.  We have 
that estimated to be about somewhere in the $65,000 range.  There will be a driveway relocation 
involved.  The Village at its sole expense shall relocate the existing shared driveway, and that will 
cost approximately $91,300.  And also a secondary fire and rescue access drive is being required, 
and that would also be at the Village expense to construct that.  And that’s located at the northeast 
corner of the property, and that would be approximately $13,000. 

 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

22 

This is a slide depicting that.  So the slide on your left is the existing shared driveway situation 
showed by the yellow arrow there.  The existing shared drive right on the property line between 
Liberty Trust property to the north and then Niagara Bottling property that’s proposed to be removed 
with this project with this development agreement on the project.  And then the result would be the 
slide on the right, the new driveway configuration.  The two green arrows show, of course, the 
shared driveway is gone, and the Liberty Properties to the north would have their own drive and 
Niagara Bottling would have their own drive to the south.  And then in the northeast corner of the 
property the red arrow shows that required fire emergency access from Niagara to Liberty Property 
Trust in case of an emergency. 

 
Another improvement would be a bypass lane on County Trunk Highway H.  The Village in 
conjunction with Kenosha County shall at the Village and/or Kenosha County’s sole expense 
construct and maintain a bypass lane on the west side of County Trunk Highway H across from the 
Niagara project driveway access and also install deceleration and acceleration lanes leading into and 
out of Niagara’s driveway on County Trunk H.  Kenosha County will fund the work on H, and the 
Village shall fund any improvements that Kenosha County does not cover. 

 
Some other portions of the agreement, water lateral service for the Niagara project the Village at its 
expense shall construct a municipal water lateral to the property’s property line to provide for service 
for the Niagara project up to and beyond the maximum peak demand for municipal water.  Secondly, 
the sanitary sewer line, the Village at its sole expense shall construct a new 18 inch sanitary sewer 
extension from the Village’s property line to provide service for Niagara’s projects to reduce utility 
costs.  And that is shown on the next slide.   

 
As you can see the Niagara property is shown in the blue, and the Village is proposing to construct 
an 18 inch sanitary sewer going from Niagara property along the east side of County Trunk Highway 
H up to the LakeView lift station at 104th and H.  As far as stormwater piping and manholes the 
Village at it’s sole expense shall provide for any upsizing of the stormwater pipe and inclusion of 
any oversized pipe and additional manholes.  The actual construction of these improvements shall be 
completed by the developer.   

 
There are some amendments to the Village ordinances that are included in this development 
agreement.  All ordinance regulations and codes for the Village as they presently exist except as 
amended, varied or modified by the terms of this agreement shall apply to the property and its 
development throughout the period.  And the period is defined from the execution of this agreement 
to substantial completion which is the date the developer begins utilizing the building for its intended 
use or the date a temporary occupancy permit use is issued, whichever comes first.   

 
So in a sense what’s happening here is -- well, I’ll read on.  Any amendment to repeal or additional 
regulations which are subsequently enacted by the Village shall not be applied to the development of 
the property except upon written request.  So what’s happening here is during this period from the 
time this agreement is signed to the time of substantial completion any ordinance amendments would 
not apply to Niagara.  And that’s to give them some peace of mind through this development 
process.  After the period the property development will be subject to all ordinances, regulations and 
codes for the Village in existence. 

 
And that’s what I have regarding this project.  I know Ms. Sutton is in the audience.  And, like I said, 
I know Ms. Sutton and their legal counsel and Mike Pollocoff have been working diligently the last 
couple weeks to get this agreement in front of you.  And with that if you have any questions we’ll be 
happy to answer them. 



 

23 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Any questions?  Ms. Sutton, do you have anything you’d like to add?  Just give us your name and 
address for the record. 

 
Derieth Sutton: 
 

Good evening, Mr. President.  I’m Derieth Sutton, economic development and government relations 
manager for Niagara Bottling.  My address is 7633 American Way in Groveland, Florida.  I am a 
corporate employee headquartered out of Ontario, California, but I live in Florida and criss-cross the 
country and everywhere else that they send me.  I just wanted to say thank you very much.  I wanted 
to extend my great appreciation to Jean and to Mike and the other Mike and Tom and just the entire 
team here in the Village for really working with our construction and our construction design team 
and our attorney, our internal attorney.  That’s a process all in itself.  And we’re just really excited 
and looking forward to being part of the community here.  So thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And, once again, at Planning Commission your representative gave the presentation on the plant and 
the operation and what we could look forward to.  So thank you. 

 
Derieth Sutton: 
 

I think you did so note here, but in between that week from last week and this week we did have a 
change, and it immediately went from the one to two lines which is what we anticipated.  When we 
first started talking with the team we told them that that’s why we always plan up to our build out, 
but we never know exactly when our executives give that go ahead for the build out.  And so it came 
Thursday evening.  So we really appreciate all the team coming together and working on this to get 
this done before tonight. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

And he did explain it would be a fluid process. 
 
Derieth Sutton: 
 

Fluid is good. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Welcome to the Village. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Thank you.  With that. 
 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE DEVELOPER AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE 
AND 88TH AVENUE PROPERTIES, INC. FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPOSED 
NIAGARA BOTTLING PROJECT; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

24 

 J. Consider the purchase of equipment for the Fire Radio Repeater project. 
 
Chief McElmury: 
 

Thank you.  Mr. President and members of the Board in your packet I gave you just kind of a cover 
sheet that briefly explains our radio project here.  Actually the project started in 2012.  We budgeted 
money to do this, however our vendor was unable to complete the project for the budgeted amount at 
that time.  We’ve since been working with them and have come up with a very workable solution.  

 
I wanted to start out by explaining the difference between our existing radio system and what we’re 
proposing to do.  We operate on what they call a simplex channel which is one channel that we 
transmit on and we receive.  So basically what happens when you key the mic on a vehicle or on a 
portable radio however far the signal goes is how far you transmit.  That’s it.  So in the event that 
we’re using a five watt portable like in Chiwaukee Prairie we barely get west of the railroad tracks so 
dispatch is not able to hear us.  And also our other units incoming have a difficult time hearing the 
units that are sizing up the scene when they arrive on what car accident do they have, what kind of 
fire conditions do they have and so.  It’s very difficult for dispatch and other incoming units to hear 
that in a simplex channel. 

 
So this is what we have right now.  And actually the frequency, the 154.3475 is actually a new 
frequency that we’ve already been approved to use as part of this new system.  This is what they call 
a repeated system also known as a duplex system.  And what happens is we actually will transmit on 
the 158.7525, it will be received, and we have another slide coming up where it’s going to be 
received, and then it gets rebroadcast over the repeated tower to that other channel.  So what in 
essence happens no matter who talks in the frequency as long as it’s picked up by one of the four 
sites it’s then rebroadcast over the main antenna.  Just like dispatch is keying the mic somebody on a 
portable has that same power and that same transmission so it really works out nice. 

 
This is our proposed system right now.  And what we’re looking to do is we’re looking to piggyback 
on the police department’s existing system.  Right now they have three remote receive sites, one here 
at Village Hall, there’s one at the Radisson and there’s one at St. Catherine’s.  And we’re 
aggressively pursuing a site down at 165 and Sheridan Road, and Tom is working on that.  Basically 
we have the site, it’s just a matter of how high we’re going to be on the tower. 

 
It’s a fairly complicated system.  What happens when you key a mic let’s say two different sites hear 
that signal.  It actually compares, and it’s called a voting receiver, it compares to see, okay, which 
one heard it better.  And this is in a millisecond.  And it decides, okay, let’s say we’re kind of in the 
middle and both the Radisson and the St. Catherine’s site heard it.  Whichever one has the strongest 
signal is going to pass on through the equipment and get rebroadcast over the tower.  So you don’t 
have echoing or anything like that.  So it’s called a voting receiver or comparator.  It actually 
compares all the stuff coming in, picks the best and transmits it.  Very similar to what the police 
department has right now.  And then we’re looking hopefully if all goes well to be able to piggyback 
on with the PD at this eastern site to help a huge radio hole that we have on the east end of town 
especially east of Sheridan Road. 

 
So the biggest thing it really affects safety.  Not only can people hear, dispatch can hear us with our 
own frequency.  As I stated in the packet that went to you, right now we have 11 departments sharing 
one frequency.  And you can only imagine on a significant weather event what that channel is like 
with multiple units from 11 different departments all trying to talk at once.  Because we’re all out at 
the same time.  When the first snowstorm hits, an ice storm hits, significant rain, high winds, and 



 

25 

even yesterday beautiful sunny day between a little after 11 o’clock and 1 o’clock we had five 
incidents at the same time.  Half the county was running at the same time.  So in addition to all of 
our traffic we had all the county traffic.  This gets us on our own frequency and dispatch is able to 
hear us, we’re able to hear them, and we’re not competing with all these other departments to do this.  
We’ll still maintain the ability to talk on the county fire frequency as we’ll use that for mutual aid 
and for like incidents on the interstate and so on, but 99 percent of the time we’re going to be 
operating on our own frequency.   

 
This also, as I mentioned in the packed here, one other thing this does is it enables us in the future to 
put in building repeaters in our large warehouses.  We have right now some very, very large 
warehouses, some of the biggest in the county and actually some of the largest in southeast 
Wisconsin.  We have warehouses that are 1.1 million square feet, over 900,000 square feet where 
sometimes the little 5 watt portable radios don’t work well from inside the building to outside.  Just a 
simple repeated system will help, however this allows the ability to put a small repeater in the 
building that can then in essence echo the message from inside the building to outside so we’ll be 
able to hear the radio traffic inside much better, and they can hear us.  So if somebody is trapped, if 
somebody is calling for assistance, they’re lost, they ran out of air or so on, we can now be able to 
hear that with this new equipment.  And we’ve never been able to do this up until now because of the 
radio system we have.  There was no way to put a repeater on a simplex frequency. 

 
So what we’re proposing to do we’ve carried over the $71,000, we’re proposing to transfer $4,920 
out of our SCBA budget that will be coming before you later on this year and add that to the $71,000 
for the total of $75,919 to perform the work at all of these sites.  The license coordination is already 
done.  The $1,115, and they were successful.  We have two frequencies.  Sometimes that’s the 
hardest part is just getting the frequencies.  We were very fortunate we got that very quickly.  All the 
repeater work in Pleasant Prairie, that’s the $65,550.   

 
We still need the ability for Kenosha County to be able to talk to us.  Right now all 9-1-1 calls come 
into the county, they then determine if it’s an emergency medical call they do the EMD or 
emergency medical dispatch.  So they give the person that calls instructions on how to do CPR, how 
to open up an airway and so on.  They’re able to provide that service for us and do our initial tone 
out, and then we’re subsequently picked up by our dispatch and they track the rest of the call.  We 
have the $6,854 in there, and that’s so they’ll actually have a small radio there that will get wired 
into their consoles, it will be no different than county fire and city fire on their consoles.  And so 
they’ll still be able to tone us out, they’ll still be able to do everything that they do now.   

 
Plus they had some redundancy in the event our dispatch was able to go down or if it went down for 
some reason.  Also, it’s hooked in so they can do what they call simulcasting.  They can do one 
message and they can let the city, the county and us know about it all at the same time so we don’t 
have to wait for subsequent tones and subsequent frequencies.  So it’s all integrated into their 
system.  We would need to change out our station tonal receivers.  The ones we have now are quite 
old and are not able to be updated or changed to a different frequency.  And then this tone encoder 
would be for the station so we can actually tone out ourselves from the station, too, again as a backup 
to dispatch.  So if you have any questions I’d like to answer them for you. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Doug, I’m glad this is coming forward.  I just feel bad that it took until 2014 to bring it forward.  I 
mean the repeaters have been in existence and I know how they work and I know the value of it.  
One question.  You said you’re going to piggyback on the police department’s repeaters.   Did you 
check with the engineer, is there any chance that the two frequencies could bleed into one another? 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

26 

 
Chief McElmury: 
 

They did extensive research on that to see if they needed to put filters on there, and they’re very 
comfortable that we’ll be able to get by without the filters. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Okay, good. 
 
Chief McElmury: 
 

And if so, if there was that would be included in the price, too.  And we’re using the same contractor 
that the PD uses so there won’t be any finger pointing back and forth.  There’s only one contractor 
responsible. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

This is a modern system that should have been in place years ago as far as I’m concerned when it 
comes to public safety so I’m going for it. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

It’s amazing to me that only four [inaudible] different between the transmission from our units to the 
[inaudible] and they go back to work for the original for the county and everybody it’s going to be 
154. 

 
Chief McElmury: 
 

It’s one of our existing problems we’ve got right now with the county fire frequency is that it’s very, 
very close to our mutual aid or what we kind of refer to MABIS frequency or [inaudible].  And it 
bleeds over so bad because it’s so close together they actually have to mute each of the other 
frequency.  If you’re speaking on a MABIS frequency it mutes out county fire and vice versa which 
is a major problem in the event, as I was talking about weather events and so on.  If there’s multiple 
incidents going on a MABIS and a county fire incident dispatch can’t hear half the traffic.  So one 
added advantage is getting us off that frequency and getting on our own.  And Deputy Chief Roepke 
put an immense amount of work in this working with the police department, the county as far as the 
county dispatch center and the vendor, Gen Comm, to put together this program.  As you can see it’s 
a very all encompassing program. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

I have one other question if I may.  Are we still doing some assistance with Paris Township on 
occasion? 

 
Chief McElmury: 
 

Yes, we have an ARA or an [inaudible] response agreement with them. 
 
 



 

27 

Michael Serpe: 
 

Do we have a repeater in that area that’s going to be able to help us out if we end up in Paris? 
 
Chief McElmury: 
 

No, because actually we’ll be operating on the county fire frequency up there.  That’s why we’ll 
maintain the ability to transmit on that.  Along the interstate the county fire frequency is the 
dedicated frequency.  And once we get west of the I we’ll be on that frequency. 

 
SERPE MOVED TO APPOVE THE PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR THE FIRE RADIO 

REPEATER PROJECT; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 
 K. Consider Resolution #14-15 - Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise 

special assessment police powers in connection with the construction of 250 linear feet 
of sanitary sewer on Springbrook Road east of STH 31. 

 
Mike Spence: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, the Village received a petition from Jerry and Anne Rabin 
who are residents that live at 6717 Springbrook Road.  Their petition was to the Village Clerk for 
sanitary sewer service.  Currently the Village has a sanitary sewer that runs along the east side of 
State Highway 31.  It crosses County Trunk Highway ML or Springbrook and then continues to the 
west and ends up in our south central lift station.  As a result of this request and if the resolution is 
passed tonight that will authorize the Village engineering department to design a sanitary sewer, will 
connect into the existing sewer here and run approximately 250 feet to the west.  That will allow 
sewer service for the Rabins and then also for the Hammerbeck residence on the north side of ML. 

 
There’s also another item on the agenda tonight in relation to this, and that’s actually to do the 
survey, to do the design.  But I guess the first thing would be to pass the resolution to allow the 
engineering department to develop plans and specs and all the information in order to determine 
costs and assessment numbers.  Do I’d be glad to answer any questions. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

I’ve got a question.  So that way in the future sewer can be extended east in Springbrook Road? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

That is correct.  When we design the sewer we’ve looked at the existing topography and the existing 
development to the east and how far a sewer could be extended.  And so this sewer will be sized to 
handle additional development to the east and then also to the north. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

So right now we’re going to provide services to the old school building in the corner plus the 
property at 717? 

 
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

28 

Mike Spence: 
 

Yes. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

So, Mike, are we asking to submit bids for a contract? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Well, the first thing for this preliminary resolution is just declaring our intent to exercise special 
assessment for our project.  By doing that then that will result in the Village engineering department 
preparing preliminary plans and specifications, cost of the improvements and a schedule of proposed 
assessments.  Once that’s all completed then there will be a notice to the affected residents, and then 
there would be a public hearing to move forward with the project.  It’s our intent we will hire a 
consultant to do the survey, but the engineering department will do the design, and we’re looking at 
possibly having public works construction crews construct the sanitary sewer. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

That was my next question because it’s only 250 feet.  I’d move approval of Resolution 14-15. 
 
 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION #14-15 - DECLARING 
INTENT TO EXERCISE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT POLICE POWERS IN CONNECTION WITH 
THE CONSTRUCTION OF 250 LINEAR FEET OF SANITARY SEWER ON SPRINGBROOK 
ROAD EAST OF STH 31; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION APPROVED 4-0. 
 
 L. Consider a contract for professional services for the survey and engineering for 

Springbrook Road right-of-way for sanitary sewer design. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

As I just alluded to in order to move forward on this project I requested a proposal from Clark Dietz 
to provide design and engineering services for this project.  And, again, this is the result.  Actually in 
addition to the request by the Rabins the individual across the street has a mound system that is 
failing as well.  So it really benefits both properties.  So the proposal that I requested will include 
field survey.  There is some design aspects that they’re going to be providing, the permitting from 
DNR and SEWRPC as well as right of way permits from the county and the DOT.  And then they 
would also construct or do the staking for the construction of the line and ultimately prepare record 
drawing. 
Again, this shows the proposed sanitary sewer.  Again, this is approximately 250 feet.  There would 
be a lateral crossing Springbrook to connect to the Rabin property as well as a lateral to connect to 
the Hammerbeck property.  The proposal that I received for these services was $8,450.  We have 
done other professional services work with Clark-Dietz, and this is a reasonable price.  And I 
recommend that that contract be executed with Clark-Dietz.  And, again, I can answer any questions. 

  
KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL 

SERVICES FOR THE SURVEY AND ENGINEERING FOR SPRINGBROOK ROAD RIGHT-OF-
WAY FOR SANITARY SEWER DESIGN; SECONDED BY SERPE; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 



 

29 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Motion by Steve, second by Mike.  Any further discussion? 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I have one.  The funds are going to come from where to cover the cost of this design? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

This will be an assessment project.  So what we do is we look at the cost to design the project and the 
cost to construct.  And that’s part of what that resolution authorized.  So I will put together all those 
costs.  Then when we have the public hearing at that point there will be an assessment associated 
with this project which will cover all the costs.  And then at that point then the people assessed will 
have the option of either paying it all up front, or typically we allow them to pay it over a ten year 
period. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Okay, thank you. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Did you have a date in mind for that public haring? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

We’re hoping to get this done within a month.  So I would anticipate -- I think we’re looking at 
getting the preliminary numbers and assessment actually done by the end of next week.  In which 
case then there would be a letter going out after that.  And the public hearing would probably be at 
the June 16th Board meeting. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

With that we had a motion and a second.  No further discussion?  Those in favor? 
 
Voices: 
 

Aye. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Opposed?  So carries. 
 
 M. Consider a contract for construction administration and inspection services for the 

2014 Paving Program. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board.  Every year when we do our paving program we hire an 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

30 

outside firm to assist us in the construction inspection of the paving work that we do.  Houle 
Enterprises has done this work for the last couple of years for the Village.  The work that they’ve 
done includes construction inspection which is actually full-time inspection during the paving 
operations.  In addition they provide full-time inspection services during the paving operations, the 
pulverizing and so forth throughout the Village.  This is an hourly contract so we pay based on the 
amount of hours that the inspector spends.  So if the contractor is efficient then we won’t be using all 
that money.  But this is our best estimate at this point as to what it will take. 

 
A little bit about the paving program, we actually have two parts of the program.  We have 
microsurfacing which will be done in portions of the corporate park, 80th Avenue, 109th Street, 
102nd Street and 107th Street, this loop, and also the 76th Avenue loop.  In addition we’re doing 
microsurface on 104th Avenue as well as 93rd Street between Cooper Road and 39th Avenue.  As a 
matter of fact you’ll see in the next week or so we’re doing both on 104th and 93rd we’re doing 
some patching work prior to the microsurfacing.   

 
In addition we are going to be doing a slurry seal at the RecPlex parking lot.  That will be similar to 
what we did last year at the IcePlex parking lot and that worked out really well.  And, again, these 
treatments are meant to prolong the life of the asphalt.  So it will prolong the time where we have to 
go back and completely rehabilitate these facilities. 

 
The rest of the paving program, again, is where we’re going to be doing some mill and overlay in 
like Country Ridge Subdivision by the 101st Street lift station.  There’s a remnant from last year, 
there’s a road to the water tower about 57th Avenue, we’re going to be paving that.  There’s a little 
part of the Prairie Farms trail from the Park Place there.  The Prairie Ridge Subdivision, again, this is 
a continuation of what we did last year in Prairie Ridge.  And then an additional portion of 104th will 
be done.  Also, there’s a portion of 88th Street that’s going to be done.  And there’s going to be a 
little part of Becker Park, a path that’s going to be paved there.  So these are all components of the 
system that Houle will be inspecting. 

 
So, again, the amount of the contract is $21,838.  I recommend that that contract be executed.  And 
I’d be glad to answer any questions. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Mike, you said we’ve used Houle before? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Yes. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We used them last year? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

We’ve actually used them for the last two years. 
 
 
 



 

31 

John Steinbrink: 
 

So we had some problems last year. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

85th Street. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

We had some on Lakeshore, too. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

That was actually believe it or not I think that was three years ago.  Houle wasn’t involved in that. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Lakeshore was two sections.   The north section was okay, the south section there was a problem. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Again, we’ve pretty much shied away from doing the microsurface in the residential areas.  I will say 
that the company that got the microsurface is not the ones we had the issues with on Lakeshore Drive 
and 85th.   

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

The size of the material. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Right.  It was a good learning process because they did not practice good quality control.  So after 
that we’ve put in a lot more tighter restrictions as far as their material handling and so forth.  But the 
firm that’s actually doing the microsurface this year is the one that did it prior to that by the hospital. 
 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Prairie Ridge. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Yes.  So we feel pretty confident. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

Matter of fact I was over there in [inaudible] and 104th.  One issue I’ve got with the project, not the 
project itself, but the [inaudible].  One guy standing on a corner waiting, people are coming and 
stopped and nowhere to go because there was not good coordination between the people that were 
doing the traffic control.  That was a problem right there. 

 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

32 

Mike Spence: 
 

Where was that? 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

In 104th right when you come from the funny corner that we’ve got by Bohat’s right there. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

This is a good start, but during budget time this year I think we really have to give a good hard look 
to some road repairs and replacements in the entire Village.  If we have one more winter like we had 
this year we’re in bad shape. 

 
Mike Spence: 
 

I can tell you, again, part of this like the work on 104th and 93rd are a good chunk of that is related 
to the winter that we had.  It really deteriorated parts of 93rd and 104th.  But I guess to get back to 
you, Steve, if you ever hear anything please let me know.  We do meet regularly with the contractor.  
And if there’s ever any issue with traffic control we’ll address it promptly. 

 
SERPED MOVED TO APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR CONSTRUCTION 

ADMINISTRATION AND INSPECTION SERVICES FOR THE 2014 PAVING PROGRAM; 
SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 N. Consider a contract for professional services for the survey of 63rd Avenue right-of-

way for water main design. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Board, this is another issue where we have had a request to extend 
a water main along 63rd Avenue in the Village.  This is just north of 85th Street.  There’s a section 
of that area where the water main was never connected.  It is planned that the water main is going to 
have the same alignment as the existing mains and just connect on either end.  The person that 
requested this is at 8330 63rd Avenue. 

 
This shows 85th Street is down here.  The blue shows the existing water mains.  This is the section 
that we need to complete.  It’s just east of -- Tuckaway Trails is over here.  This is the area also 
where the road doesn’t go through.  The City of Kenosha is north of here.  At some point that may be 
another project, but at this point we’re just looking at installing the water main for approximately a 
block.  And it would be an eight inch water main. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

So water main from that point to the Tuckaway north to 63rd, there’s no water? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

There is a water main to the north.  The red is the water main that we’re going to be installing. 
 



 

33 

Michael Serpe: 
 

This is going to be an assessed project, right? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

I have to look into that.  These people there actually was an assessment paid but it was not 
constructed. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

They were assessed? 
 
[Inaudible] 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

They paid for it?  I guess we owe them one. 
 

Mike Spence: 
 

That’s part of what I’ll be doing when I do the design.  I think there may be a parcel on the west side 
that was never assessed.  But you have a parcel -- the people here and here already have water.  But 
my understanding is we went into the property records and there was an assessment paid years ago 
for this. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

That would most likely be a public works project then? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

That’s what we’re intending, yes.  So, again, we asked for a proposal from Clark-Dietz to do survey 
and prepare the base maps so engineering can design this.  And they would provide construction 
staking services and record drawings.  And, again, it’s our intent to work with public works to 
construct it.  The fee for this engineering contract is $4,670.  Again, I recommend that Clark-Dietz 
perform this work and I’ll answer any questions. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

What I see here in front of me says $8,450. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

That was the other contract. 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

It says 63rd Avenue on it.  Typo.  Mike, the line going north of there to the city does that dead end or 
does that connect in? 

 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

34 

Mike Spence: 
 

That one I need to verify that, John.  I don’t think -- it’s not connected to the city.  That’s not one of 
our connection points to the city. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

But it’s one we have to flush as a dead end then? 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

Yes.  But actually this will help get more of a cycle system. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

If that’s such a short run that we’re putting in and all they have to do is connect the dots why is 
Clark-Dietz getting $4,600 for this? 

John Steinbrink: 
 

It’s a block. 
 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Yeah, but the guys know where they’re going. 
 
Mike Spence: 
 

The work that they’re doing includes they have to go out there and they have to survey.  Then 
they’re going to do the staking when our public works go out there.  Before they do that then they 
have to take the survey information and put it into CAD so that we can design and layout the sewer.  
And then after public works installs it with their markups then they will give that information to 
them and change the CAD drawings for as built.  So it will go into our GIS system.  And, again, the 
way these contracts are set up if they don’t spend it we don’t pay for it. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

So it’s going to be one of the many Madison orders, huh? 
 

SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR 
THE SURVEY OF 63RD AVENUE RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR WATER MAIN DESIGN; SECONDED 
BY  KECKLER; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
 O. Consider a contract for printing and mailing services for the 2014 Village Newsletter 

(June-December). 
 
Chris Lopour: 
 

Mr. President and members of the Village Board, in the interest of securing the most competitive 
responsible bid for the printing and mailing costs for the Village newsletter, I was here before you in 
late 2013 and had requested approval for a vendor, a year long contract with a vendor for the Village 



 

35 

newsletter.  And in the first four months of that contract the vendor would give us the date that they 
would deliver.  And as part of their contract they did agree to a four day turnaround time from 
receipt of files until delivery to the post office and to the Village Hall.  And in the first four months 
they did not deliver.  There would be times when they would give us a date of delivery and that date 
would come and go, and it would take sometimes four business days and sometimes a week to 
receive the newsletters.   

 
And because that service is unreliable it takes extra time I guess on my part to follow up with them, 
find out where it is.  It also creates a credibility issue when we time our email newsletter, our web 
postings and our tweets all to go out at the same time approximately that this will arrive in the U.S. 
postal mailboxes.  It becomes sometimes a credibility issue and a timing issue.  And after speaking 
with the vendor through the first three months they promised it would be perfect and dead on in the 
fourth month and it wasn’t.  So we terminated the contract with that vendor. 

 
And I’m here before you requesting approval for a contract with the vendor we actually used last 
year and the few years prior which was LaCrosse Graphics.  They were a dependable vendor.  They 
were not the lowest bid at the end of 2013, but they are the second lowest bid.  And the reliability 
would save the credibility and would also provide some reliability in delivery. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Chris, have we ever dealt with Badger Press? 
 
Chris Lopour: 
 

So we have dealt with Badger Press.  We used to deal with them when I did not work here at Village 
Hall.  Prior to my time at RecPlex, RecPlex dealt with Badger Press.  And then I had I believe one or 
two issues that I had dealt with here in my time here at Village Hall with Badger Press. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Chris, the number of online subscribers is that continuing to grow? 
 
Chris Lopour: 
 

It’s growing but it’s growing slowly.  And so right now we have 1,256 people who have subscribed 
to receive the email newsletter.  And we’ve been relatively constant in the percentage in the number 
approximately of people who receive it who open it, and then the percentage of those people who 
actually click through and read the newsletter.  So it’s growing but it’s growing slowly.  The other 
effort that I need to allocate more space to, and space is becoming an issue with the number of topics 
and projects everybody is doing in the newsletter, but I need to get out and encourage people more 
often to opt off the paper list.   

 
Right now we have 310 residents who have emails and said, hey, I’ll just take it email and I don’t 
need to receive it in the mail anymore.  I’ve kind of shied away from taking people off without 
asking them first just because to me it’s more important that they have that information in front of 
them, and if they prefer it on paper I didn’t want to take that way unless they opt off.  We currently 
have about 7,360 U.S. postal addresses on the paper list.  That’s going up a little bit actually.  The 
paper mailing list is getting larger as some of the homes that were foreclosed upon are being 
reclaimed, as we’re getting new apartment complexes in the Village, so the paper list is growing.  
And I’ll need to push more to get people to opt off of that list or at least invite them to. 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

36 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Because that will lower our cost then, correct? 
 
Chris Lopour: 
 

It will, and not substantially unless there was a massive move.  But that is something that -- the email 
list is growing and then the op offs grows much more slowly as well. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Is there any opportunities to take advantage during voting times to have people sign up for the paper 
list version at that time, or is there any conflict with utilizing the voting session? 

 
Chris Lopour: 
 

That would actually be a question I’d have to talk to the Village Clerk about because I’m not quite 
sure what voting laws require within a polling place.  But we do have other facilities in the Village.  
We have a compost site, we have the counter here where I could get some materials up that could 
invite people to do that.  So we have other places.  I can work on that and kind of do a little 
marketing campaign. 

 
My one thing that I try not to do is I try not to incent people to take the email and opt off of the 
paper.  And the reason being to me it’s more important to have them actually read the material so 
that they know what’s going on in the community as opposed to just having them off the list. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

So no bottle of water for every signup, Niagara bottle.  It’s a long night. 
 
Chris Lopour: 
 

I guess I’d be willing to give it a shot if we could come into a few thousand bottles of water. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I did have one other real question related to this, and this is a prime example of not only more for the 
greater community to realize that the lowest bid doesn’t always mean it will be the best experience.  
Was there any language related to delays in delivery where there would be a reduction of the contract 
amount or any compensation or reconciliation?   And if not, is there going to be any in the 
foreseeable contract moving forward? 

 
Chris Lopour: 
 

There is no language that says if you’re late we’ll deduct X percent.  That’s something we could do, 
but most of these print vendors especially on the lower end this is a really low price for getting this 
job done.  Even the $1,443 a lot of our local vendors can’t do it for that amount without undercutting 
any profit they make at all.  I guess they did offer, this InTech, the vendor that we cancelled the 
contract with after the fourth issue, after talking to them through each of the four issues, they did 



 

37 

offer, hey, we’ll cut you some slack on the bill if you stay with us.  But when it comes to time that it 
takes to follow up with them sometimes that cost savings is not worth the loss in productivity. 

 
Kris Keckler: 
 

Certainly, and I think you’re right on about the credibility as well and getting the messages out in a 
timely fashion.  Thank you. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

If there are no other questions for Chris. 
 

KECKLER MOVED TO APPROVE A CONTRACT FOR PRINTING AND MAILING 
SERVICES FOR THE 2014 VILLAGE NEWSLETTER (JUNE-DECEMBER); SECONDED BY 
KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 4-0. 
 
11. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS 
 
John Steinbrink: 
 

Just one.  Sunday I had the honor of attending an Eagle Scout project ceremony, an Eagle Scout 
ceremony with Chief Smetana and Chief McElmury at St. Anne’s Church.  And the young man, 
Anthony McNair, was the one receiving his Eagle Scout accreditation.  And he did a project to build 
benches in front of St. Anne’s Church.  But there have been other young men, too, that have done 
projects in the Village.  I know at Prairie Springs Park they’ve done some, and by the dog run over 
there [inaudible] Park.  So these are a lot of worthwhile projects with a lot of kids that put a lot of 
hard work and time into them.  And I know the public works director is always working with them to 
find more projects for the kids.   

 
And it’s beneficial to not only the kids but the Village and the community.  So these are good 
projects, and a lot of people put a lot of time in, the leaders, the parents, the scouts.  I want to thank 
Chief Smetana and Chief McElmury for attending.  They’re always there for these projects and help 
these kids.  I made a joke about Chief McElmury he was an Eagle Scout way back in the day.  One 
of the troops in Pleasant Prairie, 505 and other ones, and I said he probably belonged to Troop 
Number 1.  And he came back with, yeah, but it was a Roman numeral.  But just projects, things 
being part of the community and working to better the community and every benefits in the end. 

 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

I’d like to make a comment, a short comment.  Last Saturday at two o’clock in the afternoon I 
noticed a car with Wisconsin license plates which I couldn’t get.  I was going north, this car was 
coming south.  This person went to the recycling center or close to two o’clock, turn around, out of 
the car next to the median, opened the trunk and dumped a pine tree about that size and keep going.  
I didn’t get a chance to get his license plate. 

 
Michael Serpe: 
 

Celebrating Arbor Day. 
 
 
 



Village Board Meeting  
May 19, 2014 
 

 

38 

John Steinbrink: 
 

Some people wait a long time to take their Christmas tree down. 
 
Steve Kumorkiewicz: 
 

It was very green, so it looked to me like he cut it and threw it in. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

I was going to say that the RecPlex put on their spring ice show the other weekend, four 
performances, two on Saturday so they expanded that.  And everybody I think, not just on the 
IcePlex side but adjusting to that schedule.  And for the amount of events they put on there I think 
they do a phenomenal job. 

 
John Steinbrink: 
 

That shows us the need for more parking there. 
 
Kris Keckler: 
 

The picture is nice to look at, but when the spaces are built it will help. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT 
 

SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY KECKLER; MOTION 
CARRIED 4-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:05 P.M. 
 
 
 



 

1 

 
 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Village Board Trustees 
 
FROM:  Jane M. Romanowski 
  Village Clerk 
 
DATE:  May 21, 2014 
 
RE:  Liquor License Renewal Applications 
  July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 
 
 
Listed below are the liquor license applications to be considered for the July 1, 2014-June 30, 
2015 licensing year. 
 

 
CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages 
in Original Packages for Off-Premise Consumption) 

 
NAME & ADDRESS                        TRADE NAME 
 
R & D V, Inc.   .   BP/AM PM 
Syed Hussain – Agent    10477 120th Avenue 
10477 120th Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 10477 120th Avenue 
 
Roadside Petroleum, Inc.    Pantry 41 Mobil 
Surendra Singh, Agent     7511 - 118th Avenue 
7511 118th Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7511 118th Avenue 
 
PDQ Food Stores, Inc.                 PDQ Store #352     
Kathy Loberger - Agent      8800 - 75th Street  
P.O. Box 620997     Kenosha, WI  53142 
Middleton, WI 53562     
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8800 75th Street 
 



 

2 

NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
Graham Enterprise, Inc.          Stateline Citgo 
Anthony Buches - Agent            12720 Sheridan Road 
12720 Sheridan Road                   Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 12720 Sheridan Road 
 
Truesdell Mini-Mart, Inc.             Truesdell Mini-Mart 
Steve Schuler - Agent                   8531 75th Street 
7831 45th Avenue                      Kenosha WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8531 75th Street 
 
Walgreens Co.     Walgreens #07935 
Liquor Renewals – License Adm.   7520 118th Avenue 
Patricia Briggs – Agent    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
P.O. Box 901     
Deerfield, IL  60015 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7520 118th Avenue. 

 
CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

AND “CLASS A” INTOXICATING 
(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages and Intoxicating Liquor 

in Original Packages for Off-Premise Consumption) 
 
H & N Enterprises, LLC    Dream Liquor 
Harjeet Singh, - Agent    4417 75th Street 
1916 W. Timber Ridge Lane    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Oak Creek, WI  53154 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 4417 75th Street 
 
Target Corporation     Target Store T2251 
Ricardo Vargas – Agent    9777 76th Street 
1000 Nicollet Mall TPN-0910    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Minneapolis, MN  55403      
 
Premise Description: Indoor first floor located at 9777 76th Street 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

3 

CLASS “C” WINE AND CLASS “B” FERMENTED 
MALT BEVERAGE 

(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages to Consumers for On-Premise  
or Off-Premise Consumption and Wine by the glass  
or original container for On-Premise Consumption) 

 
NAME & ADDRESS     TRADE NAME 
 
Honada Sushi Corp.     Honada Sushi & Hibachi 
Lizhu Cao, Agent     8501 75th Street, Suite G 
8501 75th Street, Suite G    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8501 75th Street, Suite G 

 
CLASS "B" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 

& “CLASS B" REGULAR INTOXICATING LIQUOR 
(Sell Fermented Malt Beverages and Wine for 

On-Premise or in original containers for Off-Premise Consumption - 
Sell Intoxicating Liquor to Consumers by the 

glass for On-Premise Consumption) 
 

NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
Jose N. Reyes - Agent              Big Oaks Golf Club 
Timber Ridge Ventures LLC     6117 123rd Place 
6117 123rd Place     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158                 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: One story clubhouse and golf course located at 6117 123rd Place 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Restaurant of Pleasant Prairie, Inc.   Chancery Pub & Restaurant 
George Flees, Agent     11900 - 108th Street 
7613 W. State Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Wauwatosa, WI 53213 
 
Premise Description: Restaurant at 11900 108th Street and hotel rooms and banquet facilities 
located at 11800 108th Street 
 
Cheddar’s Casual Café, Inc.    Cheddar’s Casual Café, Inc. 
Tina L. Wesley - Agent  10366 77th Street 
2250 W. John Carpenter Frwy. #560   Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Irving, TX  75063-2764 
 
Premise Description: One story building, excluding parking lot, located at 10366 77th Street 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
 
 
 
 



 

4 

NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
ERJ Dining III, LLC     Chili’s Grill & Bar 
Paul Thompson – Agent  6903 – 75th Street  
1903 Stanley Gault Parkway    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Louisville, KY  40223      
 
Premise Description: One story building, excluding parking lot, located at 6903 75th Street 
 
Earl's Club, Inc.                      Earl's Club 
John C. Willkomm - Agent              7529 88th Avenue 
3490 169th Avenue                      Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Kenosha, WI  53144 
 
Premise Description: One story building, basement, deck and horseshoe/volleyball/picnic area 
contiguous to building, excluding parking lot, located at 7529 88th Avenue 
 
*Team R’ n B Wisconsin LLC    Famous Dave’s 
Peter Benedict - Agent    9900 77th Street 
6600 N. Ballard Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Appleton, WI  54913 
 
Premise Description: One story building including outdoor covered fenced-in patio located at 
9900 77th Street 
 *Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Prairie Pub LLC              Gordy’s Prairie Pub  
Linda DeBartolo - Agent    3812 Springbrook Road 
8217 60th Avenue                Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description:  First floor and basement of building and picnic area south/east contiguous 
to building located at 3812 Springbrook Road. 
 
Halter Wildlife, Inc.  Halter Wildlife    
John F. Burke - Agent     9626 113th Street 
9626 - 113th Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158     
 
Premise Description: Two story lodge and storage shed located at 9626 113th Street 
 
*GMRI, Inc. Licensing Dept.    The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant #1845 
Amy Lamb - Agent     10110 77th Street 
P.O. Box 695016     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Orlando, FL  32869 
 
Premise Description: One story building located at 10110 77th Street 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
Ray Radigan's Inc.     Ray Radigan's 
R. Michael Radigan - Agent    11712 Sheridan Road 
10510 Lakeshore Drive     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: Building only located at 11712 Sheridan Road 
 
Ruffolo’s Pizza LLC     Ruffolo’s Pizza 
Richard M. Stiles – Agent    11820 Sheridan Road 
11820 Sheridan Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement, excluding parking lot, located at 11820 
Sheridan Road 
 
JAAD, LLC                      Starlite Club 
Angela Daniels - agent                      8936 24th Avenue 
8934 33rd Avenue                 Kenosha, WI  53143 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement excluding parking lot, located at 8936 
24th Avenue 
 
Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub LLC   Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub 
David Schulte - Agent     10936 Sheridan Road  
8834 42nd Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: Building, basement and outdoor patio/picnic area within fencing 
contiguous to building, excluding parking lot, located at 10936 Sheridan Road 
 
PAS Village Inn, LLC     The Village Supper Club 
Susan Neahous – Agent    10909 Sheridan Road 
10909 Sheridan Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158     
 
Premise Description: First and lower level of building, excluding parking lot, located at 10909 
Sheridan Road 
 
Joseph Nickel                       The Wooden Nickel 
5813 43rd Avenue                      11606 Sheridan Road 
Kenosha, WI  53144            Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building and picnic area contiguous to building,  
excluding parking lot, located at 11606 Sheridan Road. 
 

 
 
 
 



 

6 

There are no zoning or building code violations.  The Fire Department reports the Target  
store and the Chancery restaurant are overdue to obtain automatic sprinkler and alarm tests  
which tests will need to be conducted and passed before licenses will be issued to these two  
establishments.  Chief Smetana has approved the background checks on the proposed  
licensees. 

 
I recommend approval of the licenses requested subject to the payment of license fees,  
publication fees and any delinquencies of property taxes, personal property taxes, inspection  
fees, utilities and invoices prior to the issuance of any license.  If approved, licenses will be  
issued to the agent or individual and for the premise description listed above. 
 

***** 
 
 



     
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.6504    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 
  

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®AP 

 
      TO: Mike Pollocoff/Village Administrator 
 
FROM: Mike Spence/Village Engineer 
 
      CC: Jane Romanowski/Village Clerk 
  John Steinbrink, Jr./Public Works Director 
  
 DATE: May 27, 2014 
 
       RE: Bid Award for 39th Avenue Improvements and Fire Station 
 
ATTACH: Bid Tabulation 
  Project General Layout 
 
 
Sealed bids for the above referenced project were received until 2 p.m. on May 22, 2014, at the Village 
Hall Auditorium and were publicly opened and read aloud.  A copy of the bid tabulation is enclosed for 
your reference. 
 
The project consists of the construction of site improvements and utilities related to the 39th Avenue 
Improvements and Fire Station. Specifically the project includes: 

• Reconstruction of a portion of 100th Street and 38th Avenue to an urban cross-section with curb 
and gutter and sidewalks; 

• Reconfiguration of entrances to the Village Hall and the new fire station to be consistent with the 
proposed geometrics of the 39th Avenue reconstruction; 

• Grading and construction of six parking lots to serve the south and north side of Village Hall and 
the new fire station to align with these new entrances; 

• Stormwater improvements including storm sewers and a retention pond; 
 
A total of three (3) bids were received for this project. The low bid was submitted by A. W. Oakes & Son, 
Inc. of Racine, Wisconsin, in the amount of $2,814,539.60. The second low bid was submitted by 
Willkomm Excavating & Grading, Inc. of Union Grove, Wisconsin in the amount of $2,874,385.83. The 
high bid was submitted Reesman’s Excavating & Grading, Inc. of Burlington, Wisconsin, in the amount 
of $3,843,889.00. 
 
The original engineering estimate for this work was $2,450,000. However, during the detailed design 
there were a number of unforeseen items that were added to the project which brought the estimate to 
$2,698,000. These items included: 

• Additional excavation, removals and erosion control including the need for a pond liner based on 
geotechnical information, improved access to the existing Village Hall basement area and a 
deeper pond; 



 
 

N:\Engineering\Village Board Meeting documentation\2014 Board Meetings\06.02.14\39th Ave Village Improvements\39th Ave 
Improvements and Fire Station Recommendation.docx 

 
9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951    Page Two 

• The relay of the storm sewer from 38th Avenue to 37th Avenue was added to improve the overall 
drainage in the area; 

• Additional work was needed to relay water main to make the stormwater pond drainage work; 
• The Village sanitary sewer lateral needed to be relayed; 
• Lighting was more extensive than originally estimated; 
• Irrigation was added to the site; 

 
The low bid is approximately 4.3% higher than the latest engineering estimate. The following factors may 
have contributed to the higher bid amount: 

• Due to a very heavy volume of bidding earlier this year, especially roadway and paving projects, 
many contractors have a significant backlog of projects. This situation reduces the number of 
potential bidders and is generally reflected by higher bid costs; 

• In the past few weeks, we have seen significantly higher bidding costs on projects throughout 
southeastern Wisconsin than what was experienced earlier this year; 

• Material/supply costs have continued to increase in 2014 which directly affects bid costs; 
• Southeastern Wisconsin and Kenosha County in particular have seen a significant number of 

private development projects such as those proposed for the Village. These projects have reduced 
the current availability of the contracting industry. 

 
GAI and I have reviewed the bids and in our opinion, A. W. Oakes & Son, Inc. is the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder. Therefore, it is our recommendation that the Village award this project to A. W. 
Oakes & Son, Inc. in the amount of $2,814,539.60. 
 
Following the formal award by the Village Board, we will prepare the necessary documents for execution 
by the Village and the Contractor. 



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total

1 LS 1 $8,500.00 $8,500.00 $22,700.00 $22,700.00 $9,000.00 $9,000.00
2 LS 1 $245,000.00 $245,000.00 $325,600.00 $325,600.00 $510,000.00 $510,000.00
3 LS 1 $20,000.00 $20,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $22,760.00 $22,760.00
4 LS 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $640.00 $640.00 $6,150.00 $6,150.00
5 LF 760 $4.00 $3,040.00 $4.00 $3,040.00 $8.00 $6,080.00

6 SY 130 $10.00 $1,300.00 $3.26 $423.80 $29.00 $3,770.00

7 LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $565.00 $565.00 $2,550.00 $2,550.00
8 LS 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $25,900.00 $25,900.00
9 LF 255 $20.00 $5,100.00 $9.55 $2,435.25 $22.00 $5,610.00
10 EA 3 $750.00 $2,250.00 $240.00 $720.00 $523.00 $1,569.00
11 LF 207 $100.00 $20,700.00 $93.28 $19,308.96 $130.00 $26,910.00
12 LF 156 $90.00 $14,040.00 $109.18 $17,032.08 $132.00 $20,592.00
13 LF 90 $100.00 $9,000.00 $98.58 $8,872.20 $112.00 $10,080.00
14 EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,705.00 $2,705.00
15 EA 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,370.00 $2,740.00 $2,036.00 $4,072.00
16 EA 2 $5,500.00 $11,000.00 $3,660.00 $7,320.00 $7,886.00 $15,772.00
17 EA 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $11,300.00 $11,300.00 $14,565.00 $14,565.00
18 LF 694 $100.00 $69,400.00 $81.62 $56,644.28 $62.00 $43,028.00
19 VF 35 $500.00 $17,500.00 $373.13 $13,059.55 $482.00 $16,870.00
20 EA 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $1,148.02 $1,148.02 $804.00 $804.00

21 EA 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $3,439.81 $3,439.81 $4,578.00 $4,578.00

22 LF 480 $55.00 $26,400.00 $83.74 $40,195.20 $53.00 $25,440.00
23 LF 8 $200.00 $1,600.00 $121.90 $975.20 $80.00 $640.00
24 LF 279 $65.00 $18,135.00 $51.94 $14,491.26 $62.00 $17,298.00
25 LF 1,011 $75.00 $75,825.00 $56.18 $56,797.98 $63.00 $63,693.00
26 LF 57 $75.00 $4,275.00 $69.96 $3,987.72 $73.00 $4,161.00

Remove Culvert

ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4
BID SECURITY

XXXXXXXX

6" Ductile Iron Water Main

Removing Concrete Sidewalk and 
Pavement

8" Water Main

Remove Dumpster Enclosure

Clearing and Grubbing
Common Excavation

XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin

Remove Storm Sewer Pipe
Remove Manhole or Inlet

6" PVC Water Service
8" Gate Valve and Box

Village of Pleasant Prairie

Install Clay Pond Liner

Relocate Village Hall Sign

Section 1 - Fire Station, Parking Lots, and 38th Avenue:

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

Removing Curb and Gutter

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

Install Outside Drop on Sanitary Sewer 
Manhole

6" Gate Valve and Box
Hydrant
Pumper Pad Assembly
6" Sanitary Sewer Lateral
Sanitary Manhole, 48" Diameter (4 units)
6" Sanitary Sewer Cleanout

Downspout Lateral, 3", (19 units)
Storm Lateral, 10"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class V, 12"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class IV, 15"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 18"

Page 1 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

27 LF 98 $90.00 $8,820.00 $83.74 $8,206.52 $89.00 $8,722.00
28 LF 1,004 $100.00 $100,400.00 $90.10 $90,460.40 $96.00 $96,384.00

29 EA 4 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 $1,067.46 $4,269.84 $1,033.00 $4,132.00

30 EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,269.92 $1,269.92 $1,819.00 $1,819.00

31 VF 51 $450.00 $22,950.00 $383.73 $19,570.23 $524.00 $26,724.00

32 VF 11 $450.00 $4,950.00 $401.75 $4,419.25 $722.00 $7,942.00

33 VF 16 $450.00 $7,200.00 $432.49 $6,919.84 $526.00 $8,416.00
34 VF 19 $475.00 $9,025.00 $520.48 $9,889.12 $718.00 $13,642.00
35 VF 13 $550.00 $7,150.00 $782.31 $10,170.03 $787.00 $10,231.00
36 EA 24 $2,150.00 $51,600.00 $1,803.12 $43,274.88 $2,360.00 $56,640.00

37 LS 1 $16,500.00 $16,500.00 $9,900.00 $9,900.00 $10,245.00 $10,245.00

38 CY 21 $90.00 $1,890.00 $106.00 $2,226.00 $173.00 $3,633.00
39 CY 800 $12.00 $9,600.00 $13.14 $10,512.00 $27.00 $21,600.00
40 TON 1,600 $11.00 $17,600.00 $15.12 $24,192.00 $35.00 $56,000.00
41 TON 5,650 $18.00 $101,700.00 $16.63 $93,959.50 $24.00 $135,600.00
42 SY 1,570 $30.20 $47,414.00 $32.01 $50,255.70 $32.00 $50,240.00
43 SY 3,750 $38.10 $142,875.00 $40.39 $151,462.50 $50.00 $187,500.00
44 TON 1,360 $86.10 $117,096.00 $82.15 $111,724.00 $93.00 $126,480.00
45 LF 2,030 $12.70 $25,781.00 $13.46 $27,323.80 $15.00 $30,450.00
46 LF 2,390 $11.30 $27,007.00 $11.98 $28,632.20 $16.00 $38,240.00
47 SF 10,200 $3.45 $35,190.00 $4.51 $46,002.00 $5.00 $51,000.00
48 EA 3 $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,700.00 $8,100.00 $2,501.00 $7,503.00
49 LS 1 $7,800.00 $7,800.00 $8,300.00 $8,300.00 $27,510.00 $27,510.00

50 LF 14 $28.50 $399.00 $28.62 $400.68 $32.00 $448.00

51 LF 58 $27.50 $1,595.00 $27.56 $1,598.48 $30.00 $1,740.00

Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 21"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 24"
Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwall, 15" 
with Grate
Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwall, 24" 
with Grate
Storm Manhole, 48" Diameter (8 units)
Catch Basin Manhole, 48" Diameter (2 
units)
Inlet Manhole, 48" Diameter (3 units)
Storm Manhole, 60" Diameter (3 units)
Storm Manhole, 72" Diameter (2 units)
Catch Basin, 2ʹ x 3ʹ
Concrete Trench Drain with Neenah       R-
04990-CX Casting
Medium Riprap with Geotextile Fabric
Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS)
Granular Backfill for EBS
Base Aggregate Dense, 1-1/4"
Concrete Pavement, 7"
Concrete Pavement, 8"
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3
Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type A, 30"
Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type D, 30"
Concrete Sidewalk, 5"
Reconstruct Manhole to Adjust to Grade
Dumpster Enclosure
Pavement Marking, Stop Line, Epoxy, 18", 
WhIte
Pavement Marking, Crosswalk, Epoxy, 6", 
White

Page 2 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

52 LF 2,370 $5.25 $12,442.50 $1.75 $4,147.50 $6.00 $14,220.00
53 EA 27 $150.00 $4,050.00 $63.60 $1,717.20 $87.00 $2,349.00
54 LF 960 $2.00 $1,920.00 $2.00 $1,920.00 $2.30 $2,208.00
55 EA 7 $100.00 $700.00 $106.00 $742.00 $260.00 $1,820.00
56 LF 2,960 $7.50 $22,200.00 $6.35 $18,796.00 $7.00 $20,720.00
57 EA 30 $5,700.00 $171,000.00 $6,000.00 $180,000.00 $6,500.00 $195,000.00
58 LS 1 $2,800.00 $2,800.00 $3,600.00 $3,600.00 $3,940.00 $3,940.00
59 EA 6 $5,500.00 $33,000.00 $5,560.00 $33,360.00 $6,063.00 $36,378.00

60 LS 1 $14,000.00 $14,000.00 $10,500.00 $10,500.00 $25,255.00 $25,255.00

61 EA 9 $400.00 $3,600.00 $395.00 $3,555.00 $404.00 $3,636.00
62 EA 7 $400.00 $2,800.00 $395.00 $2,765.00 $478.00 $3,346.00
63 EA 1 $350.00 $350.00 $320.00 $320.00 $356.00 $356.00
64 EA 5 $350.00 $1,750.00 $350.00 $1,750.00 $449.00 $2,245.00
65 EA 3 $300.00 $900.00 $300.00 $900.00 $302.00 $906.00
66 EA 2 $375.00 $750.00 $380.00 $760.00 $322.00 $644.00
67 EA 4 $430.00 $1,720.00 $435.00 $1,740.00 $598.00 $2,392.00
68 EA 7 $450.00 $3,150.00 $435.00 $3,045.00 $530.00 $3,710.00
69 EA 7 $425.00 $2,975.00 $415.00 $2,905.00 $537.00 $3,759.00
70 EA 7 $350.00 $2,450.00 $350.00 $2,450.00 $433.00 $3,031.00
71 EA 8 $350.00 $2,800.00 $350.00 $2,800.00 $365.00 $2,920.00
72 EA 6 $50.00 $300.00 $50.00 $300.00 $63.00 $378.00
73 EA 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 $50.00 $1,500.00 $54.00 $1,620.00

74 EA 5 $75.00 $375.00 $75.00 $375.00 $71.00 $355.00

75 EA 14 $60.00 $840.00 $60.00 $840.00 $80.00 $1,120.00
76 EA 10 $55.00 $550.00 $54.00 $540.00 $80.00 $800.00
77 EA 7 $75.00 $525.00 $75.00 $525.00 $82.00 $574.00
78 EA 10 $60.00 $600.00 $55.00 $550.00 $52.00 $520.00
79 EA 16 $25.00 $400.00 $22.00 $352.00 $26.00 $416.00
80 EA 3 $360.00 $1,080.00 $365.00 $1,095.00 $412.00 $1,236.00
81 EA 1 $675.00 $675.00 $675.00 $675.00 $976.00 $976.00

Northern Red Oak, 2.5" cal.
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac, 1.5" cal.
Glenleven Linden, 2.0" cal.

Robin Hill Serviceberry, 1.5" cal.
Imperial Honeylocust, 2.5" cal.
Hillspire Juniper, 6ʹ ht.
Skyrocket Juniper, 6ʹ ht.
White Spruce, 8 ʹ ht.
Black Hill Spruce, 8ʹ ht.

Isanti Dogwood, #3 container
Dwarf Bush - Honeysuckle, #2 container
Snow Queen Oakleaf Hydrangea, #5 
container
Nickʹs Compact Juniper, 24"
Summer Wine Ninebark, #3 container
Red Feather Arrowood Viburnum, 48"
Onondaga Viburnum, 36"
Northwind Switch Grass, 1 gal.
River Birch, 12ʹ ht., multi-stem
Eastern Redbud, 3.0" cal.

Pavement Marking, Paint, 4", White
Inlet Protection
Silt Fence
Erosion Bale Ditch Check
Conduit
Street and Site Lighting Assembly
Electrical for Fire Station Sign
Flag Pole Assembly
Radio Tower and Assembly and 
Foundation
Celebration Maple, 2.0" cal.
Miyabe Maple, 2.5" cal.

Page 3 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

82 EA 3 $410.00 $1,230.00 $400.00 $1,200.00 $516.00 $1,548.00
83 EA 5 $305.00 $1,525.00 $305.00 $1,525.00 $312.00 $1,560.00
84 EA 5 $55.00 $275.00 $52.00 $260.00 $63.00 $315.00
85 EA 9 $60.00 $540.00 $60.00 $540.00 $75.00 $675.00
86 EA 3 $65.00 $195.00 $65.00 $195.00 $70.00 $210.00
87 EA 5 $105.00 $525.00 $100.00 $500.00 $107.00 $535.00
88 EA 5 $60.00 $300.00 $67.00 $335.00 $60.00 $300.00
89 SY 560 $5.25 $2,940.00 $5.20 $2,912.00 $5.00 $2,800.00
90 EA 3 $1,900.00 $5,700.00 $2,800.00 $8,400.00 $3,480.00 $10,440.00
91 EA 3 $850.00 $2,550.00 $850.00 $2,550.00 $1,475.00 $4,425.00
92 LS 1 $36,000.00 $36,000.00 $35,649.75 $35,649.75 $118,000.00 $118,000.00
93 LS 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $15,320.00 $15,320.00 $97,400.00 $97,400.00

Subtotal - Section 1, Items 1 thru 93, Inclusive… **Subtotal $1,709,589.50 *Subtotal $1,770,386.65 Subtotal $2,422,476.00

94 LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,075.00 $2,075.00
95 LS 1 $49,000.00 $49,000.00 $35,600.00 $35,600.00 $90,000.00 $90,000.00
96 LS 1 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 $9,700.00 $9,700.00 $1,735.00 $1,735.00
97 LF 17 $100.00 $1,700.00 $4.00 $68.00 $33.00 $561.00
98 LF 325 $90.00 $29,250.00 $98.00 $31,850.00 $117.00 $38,025.00
99 EA 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,960.00 $3,920.00 $2,705.00 $5,410.00

100 EA 1 $4,500.00 $4,500.00 $7,700.00 $7,700.00 $4,550.00 $4,550.00
101 LF 20 $100.00 $2,000.00 $62.00 $1,240.00 $60.00 $1,200.00
102 LF 172 $70.00 $12,040.00 $55.00 $9,460.00 $63.00 $10,836.00
103 LF 135 $100.00 $13,500.00 $76.00 $10,260.00 $93.00 $12,555.00
104 LF 291 $125.00 $36,375.00 $99.00 $28,809.00 $118.00 $34,338.00
105 LF 440 $160.00 $70,400.00 $160.00 $70,400.00 $214.00 $94,160.00

106 LF 545 $200.00 $109,000.00 $215.00 $117,175.00 $231.00 $125,895.00

107 EA 4 $650.00 $2,600.00 $1,070.00 $4,280.00 $1,033.00 $4,132.00

Section 2 - 100th Street Reconstruction:

8" Gate Valve and Box
Relocate Hydrant
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class V, 12"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class IV, 15"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 24"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 30"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 36"
Reinforced Concrete Horizontal Elliptical 
Pipe, Class HE-II, 60" x 38"
Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwall, 15" 
with Grate

Siebold Yew, 30"
American Cranberry Bush Viburnam, 36"
Native Seed Mix
Tree Grates
Precast Concrete Planters
Irrigation System
Lawn Restoration

Clearing and Grubbing
Common Excavation
Remove Culverts
Remove Curb 
8" Water Main

Canaert Juniper, 6ʹ ht.
Common Hackberry, 3.0" cal.

Gray Dogwood, 36"
Blue Forest Juniper, #5 container
Meyer Lilac, 30"

Page 4 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

108 EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,270.00 $1,270.00 $1,830.00 $1,830.00

109 EA 1 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $1,415.03 $1,415.03 $1,875.00 $1,875.00

110 EA 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 $2,630.00 $2,630.00 $5,092.00 $5,092.00

111 VF 4 $525.00 $2,100.00 $470.00 $1,880.00 $671.00 $2,684.00
112 VF 21 $550.00 $11,550.00 $500.00 $10,500.00 $668.00 $14,028.00
113 VF 5 $625.00 $3,125.00 $540.00 $2,700.00 $737.00 $3,685.00
114 VF 17 $650.00 $11,050.00 $680.00 $11,560.00 $638.00 $10,846.00
115 VF 29 $700.00 $20,300.00 $1,000.00 $29,000.00 $937.00 $27,173.00
116 VF 5 $800.00 $4,000.00 $1,120.00 $5,600.00 $1,114.00 $5,570.00
117 VF 7 $825.00 $5,775.00 $1,120.00 $7,840.00 $1,188.00 $8,316.00
118 EA 4 $2,500.00 $10,000.00 $1,800.00 $7,200.00 $2,318.00 $9,272.00
119 CY 13 $75.00 $975.00 $120.00 $1,560.00 $236.00 $3,068.00
120 CY 200 $10.00 $2,000.00 $13.14 $2,628.00 $27.00 $5,400.00
121 TON 400 $11.00 $4,400.00 $15.12 $6,048.00 $35.00 $14,000.00
122 TON 1,560 $18.00 $28,080.00 $16.50 $25,740.00 $24.00 $37,440.00
123 TON 30 $22.00 $660.00 $26.24 $787.20 $41.00 $1,230.00
124 SY 1,810 $30.20 $54,662.00 $32.12 $58,137.20 $32.00 $57,920.00
125 TON 400 $90.30 $36,120.00 $77.00 $30,800.00 $84.00 $33,600.00
126 TON 26 $147.00 $3,822.00 $77.00 $2,002.00 $84.00 $2,184.00
127 LF 864 $12.70 $10,972.80 $13.50 $11,664.00 $14.50 $12,528.00
128 LF 236 $11.30 $2,666.80 $12.00 $2,832.00 $16.00 $3,776.00
129 EA 2 $378.00 $756.00 $800.00 $1,600.00 $900.00 $1,800.00
130 SF 2,590 $3.50 $9,065.00 $4.50 $11,655.00 $5.00 $12,950.00
131 EA 3 $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $930.00 $2,790.00 $2,502.00 $7,506.00

132 LF 30 $28.50 $855.00 $30.00 $900.00 $32.00 $960.00

133 LF 64 $27.50 $1,760.00 $28.00 $1,792.00 $30.00 $1,920.00
134 EA 7 $160.00 $1,120.00 $63.00 $441.00 $87.00 $609.00
135 LF 200 $2.00 $400.00 $2.00 $400.00 $2.30 $460.00Silt Fence

Pavement Marking Crosswalk, Epoxy, 6"
Inlet Protection

Reconstruct Manhole to Adjust to Grade

Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS)

Base Aggregate Dense, 3/4"

Storm Manhole, 96" Diameter (1 unit)

Inlet Manhole, 48" Diameter (1 unit)

Granular Backfill for EBS

Asphaltic Flume
Concrete Sidewalk, 5"

Catch Basin, 2ʹ x 3ʹ
Medium Riprap with Geotextile Fabric

Inlet Manhole, 84" Diameter (1 unit)

Storm Manhole, 72" Diameter (2 units)
Storm Manhole, 84" Diameter (4 units)

Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type D, 30"

Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-3.0
Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type A, 30"

Base Aggregate Dense, 1-1/4"

Concrete Pavement, 7"
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3

Storm Manhole, 60" Diameter (3 units)
Catch Basin, 60" Diameter (1 unit)

Pavement Marking, Stop Line, Epoxy, 18", 
WhIte

Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwall, 24" 
with Grate
Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwall, 30" 
with Grate
Reinforced Concrete Horizontal Elliptical 
Apron Endwall, 60" x 38" with Grate

Page 5 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

136 EA 1 $250.00 $250.00 $106.00 $106.00 $261.00 $261.00
137 LF 475 $7.50 $3,562.50 $6.35 $3,016.25 $7.00 $3,325.00
138 EA 7 $6,700.00 $46,900.00 $5,700.00 $39,900.00 $6,243.00 $43,701.00
139 EA 3 $375.00 $1,125.00 $365.00 $1,095.00 $423.00 $1,269.00
140 EA 1 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $400.00 $478.00 $478.00
141 EA 3 $350.00 $1,050.00 $350.00 $1,050.00 $365.00 $1,095.00
142 LS 1 $2,550.00 $2,550.00 $2,900.00 $2,900.00 $4,046.00 $4,046.00
143 LS 1 $615.00 $615.00 $835.00 $835.00 $23,300.00 $23,300.00

Subtotal - Section 2, Items 94 thru 143, Inclusive… ***Subtotal $638,282.10 Subtotal $625,135.68 Subtotal $790,669.00

144 LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 $1,970.00 $1,970.00 $3,170.00 $3,170.00
145 LS 1 $45,000.00 $45,000.00 $62,000.00 $62,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00
146 LS 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $450.00 $450.00 $1,735.00 $1,735.00

147 SY 20 $150.00 $3,000.00 $83.00 $1,660.00 $29.00 $580.00

148 LF 167 $40.00 $6,680.00 $12.00 $2,004.00 $22.00 $3,674.00
149 EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $240.00 $240.00 $14,000.00 $14,000.00
150 LF 27 $150.00 $4,050.00 $200.00 $5,400.00 $298.00 $8,046.00
151 LF 50 $150.00 $7,500.00 $150.00 $7,500.00 $177.00 $8,850.00
152 LF 132 $80.00 $10,560.00 $86.00 $11,352.00 $94.00 $12,408.00
153 EA 2 $2,500.00 $5,000.00 $1,410.00 $2,820.00 $2,035.00 $4,070.00
154 EA 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $3,660.00 $3,660.00 $8,586.00 $8,586.00
155 EA 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $14,950.00 $14,950.00
156 LF 90 $50.00 $4,500.00 $38.00 $3,420.00 $42.00 $3,780.00
157 LF 165 $55.00 $9,075.00 $47.00 $7,755.00 $44.00 $7,260.00
158 EA 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $500.00
159 EA 2 $1,250.00 $2,500.00 $1,200.00 $2,400.00 $580.00 $1,160.00
160 LF 10 $100.00 $1,000.00 $93.00 $930.00 $61.00 $610.00
161 LF 243 $70.00 $17,010.00 $49.00 $11,907.00 $53.00 $12,879.00
162 LF 19 $100.00 $1,900.00 $135.00 $2,565.00 $100.00 $1,900.00

6" Storm Sewer Lateral Cleanout
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class V, 12"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class IV, 15"
Reinforced Concrete Pipe, Class III, 18"

Storm Sewer Lateral, 6"
3" Storm Sewer Lateral Cleanout

8" Water Main
6" Ductile Iron Water Main (est. qty.)
6" PVC Water Service
6" Gate Valve and Box

Pumper Pad Assembly
Downspout Lateral, 3"

Hydrant

Remove Concrete Sidewalk, Stairs, and 
Pavement
Remove Storm Sewer Pipe and Endwalls
Remove Storm Sewer Manhole or Inlet

Glenleven Linden, 2.0" cal.
Irrigation System

Common Excavation

Erosion Bale Ditch Check

Remove Culvert

Lawn Restoration

Clearing and Grubbing

Sienna Glen Maple, 2.0" cal.
Miyabe Maple, 2.5" cal.

Section 3 - South Parking Lot:

Conduit
Street and Site Lighting Assembly

Page 6 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

163 EA 1 $750.00 $750.00 $1,100.00 $1,100.00 $1,033.00 $1,033.00

164 VF 4 $525.00 $2,100.00 $540.00 $2,160.00 $823.00 $3,292.00
165 EA 5 $1,850.00 $9,250.00 $1,900.00 $9,500.00 $2,360.00 $11,800.00
166 CY 7 $100.00 $700.00 $120.00 $840.00 $173.00 $1,211.00
167 SF 400 $61.00 $24,400.00 $62.00 $24,800.00 $41.00 $16,400.00
168 CY 300 $10.00 $3,000.00 $13.14 $3,942.00 $27.00 $8,100.00
169 TON 600 $11.50 $6,900.00 $15.12 $9,072.00 $35.00 $21,000.00
170 TON 2,100 $19.00 $39,900.00 $16.74 $35,154.00 $24.00 $50,400.00
171 TON 740 $78.75 $58,275.00 $81.00 $59,940.00 $92.00 $68,080.00
172 LF 1,235 $11.80 $14,573.00 $12.50 $15,437.50 $16.00 $19,760.00
173 SF 4,700 $3.55 $16,685.00 $4.61 $21,667.00 $7.00 $32,900.00
174 LF 1,550 $5.50 $8,525.00 $1.75 $2,712.50 $6.00 $9,300.00
175 EA 6 $160.00 $960.00 $65.00 $390.00 $87.00 $522.00
176 LF 1,070 $7.50 $8,025.00 $6.35 $6,794.50 $7.00 $7,490.00
177 EA 12 $5,700.00 $68,400.00 $6,000.00 $72,000.00 $6,255.00 $75,060.00
178 LS 1 $5,250.00 $5,250.00 $9,500.00 $9,500.00 $11,539.00 $11,539.00
179 EA 7 $390.00 $2,730.00 $400.00 $404.00 $2,828.00
180 EA 5 $320.00 $1,600.00 $320.00 $356.00 $1,780.00
181 EA 1 $755.00 $755.00 $765.00 $1,043.00 $1,043.00
182 EA 1 $670.00 $670.00 $675.00 $927.00 $927.00
183 EA 5 $350.00 $1,750.00 $350.00 $1,750.00 $449.00 $2,245.00
184 EA 5 $300.00 $1,500.00 $300.00 $1,500.00 $303.00 $1,515.00
185 EA 1 $305.00 $305.00 $305.00 $305.00 $313.00 $313.00
186 EA 3 $305.00 $915.00 $435.00 $1,305.00 $530.00 $1,590.00
187 EA 1 $410.00 $410.00 $410.00 $410.00 $537.00 $537.00
188 EA 8 $350.00 $2,800.00 $350.00 $2,800.00 $433.00 $3,464.00
189 EA 10 $50.00 $500.00 $50.00 $500.00 $53.00 $530.00
190 EA 16 $50.00 $800.00 $50.00 $800.00 $54.00 $864.00

191 EA 5 $75.00 $375.00 $75.00 $375.00 $71.00 $355.00

Isanti Dogwood, #3 container
Dwarf Bush - Honeysuckle, #2 container
Snow Queen Oakleaf Hydrangea, #5 
container

Imperial Honeylocust, 2.5" cal.
Hillspire Juniper, 6ʹ ht.
Canaert Juniper, 6ʹ ht.
Black Hills Spruce, 8ʹ ht.
Northern Red Oak, 2.5" cal.
Ivory Silk Tree Lilac, 1.5" cal.

Street and Site Lighting Assembly
Pond Aerator Assembly
Celebration Maple, 2.0" cal.
Robin Hill Serviceberry, 1.5" cal.
Musclewood, 4.0" cal.
Eastern Redbud, 3.0" cal.

Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3
Concrete Curb and Gutter, Type D, 30"
Concrete Sidewalk, 5"
Pavement Marking, Paint, 4", White
Inlet Protection
Conduit

Base Aggregate Dense, 1-1/4"

Medium Riprap with Geotextile Fabric
Retaining Wall, 3 Walls
Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS)
Granular Backfill for EBS

Reinforced Concrete Apron Endwalls, 18" 
with Grate
Inlet Manhole, 48" Diameter (1 unit)
Catch Basin, 2ʹ x 3ʹ

Page 7 of 10



Bid Tabulation
Project Name: Bid Date: 

Owner: Time: 
Project No. 

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

5% BB  X 5% BB  X 5% BB  X

No. Item Unit Qty Price Total Price Total Price Total
ADDENDA NOs. 1 thru 4

BID SECURITY
XXXXXXXX XXXX

W120071.00Kenosha County, Wisconsin
Village of Pleasant Prairie

May 22, 2014
2:00 p.m.

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station

192 EA 8 $60.00 $480.00 $60.00 $480.00 $80.00 $640.00
193 EA 3 $55.00 $165.00 $65.00 $195.00 $80.00 $240.00
194 EA 8 $65.00 $520.00 $65.00 $520.00 $70.00 $560.00
195 EA 3 $105.00 $315.00 $100.00 $300.00 $107.00 $321.00
196 EA 2 $80.00 $160.00 $76.00 $152.00 $82.00 $164.00
197 EA 5 $60.00 $300.00 $55.00 $275.00 $60.00 $300.00
198 EA 20 $50.00 $1,000.00 $22.00 $440.00 $25.00 $500.00
199 EA 27 $50.00 $1,350.00 $22.00 $594.00 $9.00 $243.00
200 EA 8 $1,900.00 $15,200.00 $3,000.00 $24,000.00 $3,500.00 $28,000.00
201 EA 6 $850.00 $5,100.00 $850.00 $5,100.00 $1,480.00 $8,880.00
202 LS 1 $15,250.00 $15,250.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $40,000.00 $40,000.00
203 LS 1 $3,750.00 $3,750.00 $3,860.00 $3,860.00 $11,860.00 $11,860.00

Subtotal - Section 3, Items 144 thru 203, Inclusive… Subtotal $466,668.00 *Subtotal $478,863.50 Subtotal $630,744.00

Total $2,814,539.60 ****Total $2,874,385.83 Total $3,843,889.00

179 thru 182 only Total prices.

written out in words.

***Revisions made to unit/total 
**Math error Items 52 and 174.

prices entered for Items 104,
105, 106, & 173, but not initialed.
****No Unit prices listed for Items

Precast Concrete Planters
Irrigation System
Lawn Restoration

Siebold Yew, 30"
Red Feather Arrowood Viburnum, 48"
Onondaga Viburnum, 36"
Northwind Switch Grass, 1 gallon
Prairie Dropseed, 1 gallon
Tree Grates

Nickʹs Compact Juniper, 24"
Summer Wine Ninebark, #3 container
Meyer Lilac, 30"

*Error in Bid Item 30.
**Error in Bid Item 95. thru 116 with unit prices 

*Only Items 1 thru 22 and 104

TOTAL - (BASE BID) - SECTIONS 1 thru 3; ITEMS 1 thru 
203, INCLUSIVE…

**No Unit Price words for Bid 
  Item 122.

Page 8 of 10



Project Name: Bid Date: May 22, 2014
Owner: Time: 2:00 p.m.

Project No. W120071.00

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

No. Item Unit Price Price Price

Utility Construction - General:
1 $200.00 $500.00 $375.00

2 $50.00 $50.00 $50.00

3 $40.00 $40.00 $30.00

4 $3.00 $4.00 $5.00

5 $24.00 $40.00 $35.00

6 $500.00 $500.00 $350.00
7 $10.00 $15.00 $15.00

Sanitary Sewer Construction:
8

$5,000.00 $1,500.00 $4,500.00
$6,000.00 $2,000.00 $5,750.00
$7,000.00 $2,500.00 $6,900.00

Water Main Construction:
9

$500.00 $350.00 $500.00
$750.00 $450.00 $690.00

$1,000.00 $550.00 $775.00
$1,250.00 $650.00 $1,100.00

Reinforced concrete beam, to support 
underground structures. LF

CY
Excavated material backfill, ordered to 
replace granular backfill, deduct. CY

b)  12 inch extension EA

EA

LF

c)  18 inch extension

Kenosha County, Wisconsin

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station
Village of Pleasant Prairie

d)  24 inch extension EA

Schedule of Supplemental Unit Prices

Rock excavation. CY

b)  Offset 8 inch water main EA
c)  Offset 12 inch water main EA

No. 3 crushed stone, 2 inch size, for 
unstable trench bottom, including 
excavation of unsuitable material. CY
Granular backfill, ordered to replace 
excavated material backfill, including 
disposal of excavated material.

CY
Granular backfill, to support underground 
structures.

Offset existing water main:
a)  Offset 6 inch water main

Insulation.

Hydrant barrel extension:
a)  6 inch extension EA

EA

Page 9 of 10



Project Name: Bid Date: May 22, 2014
Owner: Time: 2:00 p.m.

Project No. W120071.00

CONTRACTOR A W Oakes & Son, Inc Willkomm Exc & Grdg, Inc Reesmanʹs Exc & Grdg, Inc
2000 Oakes Road 17108 County Line Road 28815 Bushnell Road
Racine, WI  53406 Union Grove, WI  53182 Burlington, WI  53105

No. Item Unit Price Price Price

Kenosha County, Wisconsin

39th Ave Improvements & Fire Station
Village of Pleasant Prairie

Schedule of Supplemental Unit Prices

Road Construction:

10 $6.00 $3.00 $8.00

11 $17.00 $20.00 $35.00

12 $1,000.00 Nothing Entered $85.00
13 $1,000.00 $500.00 $400.00

14 $350.00 $250.00 $250.00

Soil stabilization fabric, Mirafi 600X or 
equal.
Subbase material, crushed stone - 
Gradation No. 1, placed over stabilization 
fabric.
Valve box section, to adjust valve boxes to 
grade.

SY

EA
Align manhole frames disturbed by others. TON

Align valve boxes disturbed by others. TON

TON

Page 10 of 10



39th Avenue Improvements and Fire Station 

 

 

 



     
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.6504    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 
  

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®AP 

 
      TO: Mike Pollocoff/Village Administrator 
 
FROM: Mike Spence/Village Engineer 
 
      CC: Jane Romanowski/Village Clerk 
  John Steinbrink, Jr./Public Works Director 
  
 DATE: May 23, 2014 
 
       RE: Bid Award for Park and Ride Bridge Materials 
 
ATTACH: Bid Tabulation 
  Construction Drawings 1 through 3   
 
 
Sealed bids for the furnishing of a precast reinforced concrete three-sided structure (Drawings 1 and 2), 
prefabricated steel truss bridge (Drawing 3) and railings for the bridges at the Park and Ride site were 
received on May 22, 2014 at the Village Hall Auditorium and were publicly opened and read aloud.  A 
copy of the bid tabulation is enclosed for your reference. 
 
The following project components were bid: 

1. One 50-foot wide by 28-foot span precast reinforced concrete three-sided structure; 
2. Precast headwall and wingwalls; 
3. Precast reinforced abutments for the pedestrian bridge; 
4. One 10-foot wide by 80-foot long prefabricated steel truss bridge with precast abutments; 
5. Fabricated steel railing for the bridge headwall and wingwall; 
6. Fabricated steel railing for the pedestrian bridge abutments. 

  
Three bids were received for these materials. 

• For item number 1, Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC out of Madison, Wisconsin bid 
$137,700.00 and County Materials Group out of Milwaukee, Wisconsin bid $221,235.34; 

• For item no. 2, Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC bid $32,300.00 and County Materials 
Group did not bid; 

• For item no. 3, Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC. bid $59.500.00 and County 
Materials Group did not bid; 

• For item no. 4, Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC bid $55,000.00 and County Materials 
Group did not bid; 

• For item no. 5, ESS Brothers and Sons, Inc out of Loretto, Minnesota submitted the sole 
bid of $16,714.00; 

• For item no. 6, ESS Brothers and Sons, Inc. submitted the sole bid of $5,856.00. 
 



 
 

N:\Engineering\Village Board Meeting documentation\2014 Board Meetings\06.02.14\Park and Ride Materials Bid\Park and 
Ride Materials Bid Recommendation.docx 

 
9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951    Page Two 

 
These bids for these materials are much less than the material components contained within the 
previous bid opened April 24, 2014 from Concrete Structures Inc. which was rejected by the 
Board on May 12. 
 
The following table presents the differences in the rejected bid and the current materials bid with 
Village labor: 
 

Item Concrete 
Structures Rejected 

Bid 

Recent Bid with 
Village Installation 

Difference 

Access bridge, headwalls 
and wingwalls 

$358,200 $235,000 $123,200 

Pedestrian Bridge and 
abutments 

$247,000 $149,500 $97,500 

Railings $42,000 $27,570 $14,430 
Erosion Control $14,549 $10,490 $4,059 

Totals: $661,749 $422,560 $239,189 
 
 
Based on the comparisons with the previous bid, these prices are acceptable and I recommend that 
the Village process purchase requisitions for the following: 
 

• Contech Engineered Solutions, LLC for items 1 through 4 in the amount of $284,500.00; 
• ESS Brothers & Sons, Inc. for items 5 and 6 in the amount of $22,570.00. 

 



Village of Pleasant Prairie

Park and Ride Bridges Materials
Bid Opening:  May 22, 2014, 10:00 a.m.

NO. Item Description

Specified 

Delivery Date
Alternate 

Delivery Date Bid Amount $

Alternate 

Delivery Date Bid Amount $

Alternate 

Delivery Date Bid Amount $

Alternate 

Delivery Date Bid Amount $

1
Precast Reinforced Concrete 

Three-Sided Structure B-30-124
7/8/2014

$137,700.00 $221,235.34 $-

2
Precast Reinforced Concrete 

Foundation Units B-30-124
7/7/2014

$32,300.00 $- $-

3
Precast Reinforced Concrete 

Abutments B-30-125
7/10/2014

07/22/14 $59,500.00 $- $-

4
Prefabricated Steel Truss 

Pedestrian Bridge B-30-125
7/21/2014

08/07/14 $55,000.00 $- $-

5 Fabricated Steel Railing  B-30-124 8/11/2014
$- $- 09/30/14 $16,714.00

6 Fabricated Steel Railing  B-30-125 8/11/2014
$- $- 09/30/14 $5,856.00

5A
Aluminum Railing  B-30-124 

(Alternate)
8/11/2014

$- $- $-

6A
Aluminum Railing  B-30-125 

(Alternate)
8/11/2014

$- $- $-

YES NO YES

BIDDING SCHEDULE

Addendum No. 1 Acknowleged?

CONTECH COUNTY MATERIALS GROUP ESS BROTHERS & SONS, INC

BIDDER

Page ____









     
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.6504    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 
  

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®AP 

 
      TO: Mike Pollocoff/Village Administrator 
 
FROM: Mike Spence/Village Engineer 
 
      CC: Jane Romanowski/Village Clerk 
  John Steinbrink, Jr./Public Works Director 
  Vesna Savic/Deputy Village Clerk 
  
 DATE: May 29, 2014 
 
       RE: Conditional Bid Award for Park and Ride Paving 
 
ATTACH: Bid Tabulation 
 
 
Sealed bids for the above referenced project were received until 10 a.m. on May 29, 2014, at the 
Village Hall and were publicly opened and read aloud.  A copy of the bid tabulation is enclosed 
for your reference. 
 
The project consists of: 
 387 space park and ride lot; 
 Clearing and grubbing, grading, curb and gutter; 
 Inlets, storm sewer, base aggregate, asphalt paving, concrete sidewalk and curb ramps; 
 Lighting, detectable warning fields, pavement marking, erosion control items, native 

seeding and landscaping. 
 
Three bids were received: 

• Willkomm Excavating & Grading, Inc. Union Grove, Wisconsin  $1,115,755.50. 
• A.W. Oakes & Son, Racine, Wisconsin     $1,298,314.20 
• D.K. Contractors, Inc. Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin    $1,413,885.00 

 
The engineer’s estimate was $1,125,346.50. The low bid from Willkomm is acceptable and 
below the engineer’s estimate. This is a joint Wisconsin Department of Transportation 
(WisDOT) project, as such this award and the subsequent Disadvantaged Business Requirement 
(DBE) must be reviewed and approved by WisDOT also. I am recommending that this Contract 
be awarded to Willkomm Excavating subject to the pending approval of WisDOT in the amount 
of $1,115,755.50. 
 



Village of Pleasant Prairie

Kenosha County Park and Ride Lot - WisDOT I.D. 1693-35-75
Bid Opening:  May 29, 2014, 10:00 a.m.

NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT $ TOTAL $ UNIT $ TOTAL $ UNIT $ TOTAL $ UNIT $ TOTAL $

1 201.0110 CLEARING 12,500 SY 0.75            9,375.00 0.74 9,250.00 0.77 9,625.00 1.00 12,500.00

2 201.0210 GRUBBING 12,500 SY 0.75            9,375.00 0.25 3,125.00 0.26 3,250.00 1.00 12,500.00

3 204.0150 REMOVING CURB AND GUTTER 310 LF 4.50            1,395.00 5.90 1,829.00 5.00 1,550.00 6.00 1,860.00

4 204.0155 REMOVING SIDEWALK 65 SY 10.00          650.00 12.00 780.00 7.00 455.00 7.00 455.00

5 205.0100 EXCAVATION COMMON **P** 18,400 CY 7.00            128,800.00 6.50 119,600.00 13.00 239,200.00 15.00 276,000.00

6 305.0120 BASE AGGREGATE DENSE 1 1/4-

INCH 6,900 TON 15.00          103,500.00 15.66 108,054.00 13.50 93,150.00 22.00 151,800.00

7 312.0110 SELECT CRUSHED MATERIAL (for 

EBS areas) 1,800 TON 15.00          27,000.00 16.70 30,060.00 13.00 23,400.00 20.00 36,000.00

8 455.0115 ASPHALTIC MATERIAL PG64-22 80 TON 100.00        8,000.00 1.10 88.00 1.00 80.00 200.00 16,000.00

9 455.0120 ASPHALTIC MATERIAL PG64-28 107 TON 110.00        11,770.00 55.00 5,885.00 2.00 214.00 52.00 5,564.00

10 455.0500 TACK COAT 347 GAL 2.00            694.00 5.00 1,735.00 2.00 694.00 5.00 1,735.00

11 460.1100 HMA PAVEMENT TYPE E-0.3 3,400 TON 66.00          224,400.00 80.00 272,000.00 72.00 244,800.00 66.00 224,400.00

12 522.1012 APRON ENDWALLS FOR 

CULVERT PIPE REINFORCED 

CONCRETE 12-INCH 1 EACH 700.00        700.00 745.00 745.00 800.00 800.00 800.00 800.00

13 522.1021 APRON ENDWALLS FOR 

CULVERT PIPE REINFORCED 

CONCRETE 21-INCH 1 EACH 750.00        750.00 827.00 827.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 900.00 900.00

14 522.1024 APRON ENDWALLS FOR 

CULVERT PIPE REINFORCED 

CONCRETE 24-INCH 2 EACH 800.00        1,600.00 868.00 1,736.00 1,150.00 2,300.00 700.00 1,400.00

15 601.0407 CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER 

18-INCH TYPE D 3,200 LF 15.00          48,000.00 14.50 46,400.00 12.54 40,128.00 18.00 57,600.00

16 602.0410 CONCRETE SIDEWALK 5-INCH 14,600 SF 5.00            73,000.00 3.32 48,472.00 3.80 55,480.00 4.00 58,400.00

17 602.0515 CURB RAMP DETECTABLE 

WARNING FIELD NATURAL 

PATINA 120 SF 50.00          6,000.00 33.25 3,990.00 31.88 3,825.60 34.00 4,080.00

18 606.0100 RIPRAP LIGHT 54 CY 100.00        5,400.00 104.00 5,616.00 80.00 4,320.00 100.00 5,400.00

19 606.0200 RIPRAP MEDIUM 7 CY 100.00        700.00 209.00 1,463.00 180.00 1,260.00 100.00 700.00

20 608.0318 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

III 18-INCH 95 LF 45.00          4,275.00 37.80 3,591.00 69.00 6,555.00 41.00 3,895.00

21 608.0321 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

III 21-INCH 77 LF 50.00          3,850.00 37.00 2,849.00 70.00 5,390.00 41.00 3,157.00

22 608.0324 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

III 24-INCH 61 LF 55.00          3,355.00 54.00 3,294.00 110.00 6,710.00 98.00 5,978.00

23 608.0415 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

IV 15-INCH 362 LF 50.00          18,100.00 35.00 12,670.00 60.00 21,720.00 35.00 12,670.00

24 608.0418 STORM SEWER PIPE 240 LF 55.00          13,200.00 38.00 9,120.00 71.00 17,040.00 40.00 9,600.00

25 608.0421 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

IV 21-INCH 120 LF 58.00          6,960.00 42.00 5,040.00 76.00 9,120.00 44.00 5,280.00

26 608.0424 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

IV 24-INCH 148 LF 60.00          8,880.00 46.00 6,808.00 85.00 12,580.00 51.00 7,548.00

27 608.0512 STORM SEWER PIPE 

REINFORCED CONCRETE CLASS 

V 12-INCH 41 LF 50.00          2,050.00 27.00 1,107.00 60.00 2,460.00 82.00 3,362.00

28 611.0430 RECONSTRUCTING INLETS 2 EACH 500.00        1,000.00 577.00 1,154.00 1,150.00 2,300.00 400.00 800.00

29 611.3003 INLETS 3-FT DIAMETER 2 EACH 1,000.00     2,000.00 1,062.00 2,124.00 1,600.00 3,200.00 900.00 1,800.00

30 611.3004 INLETS 4-FT DIAMETER 8 EACH 1,400.00     11,200.00 1,501.00 12,008.00 1,800.00 14,400.00 900.00 7,200.00

31 619.1000 MOBILIZATION (@ 5% 

CONSTRUCTION) 1 EACH 53,000.00   53,000.00 21,900.00 21,900.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 64,500.00 64,500.00

32 625.0500 SALVAGED TOPSOIL 11,800 SY 1.50            17,700.00 1.45 17,110.00 1.85 21,830.00 3.00 35,400.00

33 627.0200 MULCHING 7,400 SY 0.10            740.00 0.10 740.00 0.16 1,184.00 1.00 7,400.00

34 628.1504 SILT FENCE 2,800 LF 1.50            4,200.00 1.63 4,564.00 2.00 5,600.00 2.00 5,600.00

35 628.1520 SILT FENCE MAINTENANCE 2,800 LF 0.25            700.00 0.51 1,428.00 0.40 1,120.00 1.00 2,800.00

36 628.1905 MOBILIZATIONS EROSION 

CONTROL 1 EACH 300.00        300.00 360.00 360.00 500.00 500.00 300.00 300.00

37 628.2008 EROSION MAT URBAN CLASS I 

TYPE B 6,700 SY 3.00            20,100.00 1.60 10,720.00 2.00 13,400.00 2.00 13,400.00

38 628.2033 EROSION MAT CLASS III TYPE B 130 SY 8.00            1,040.00 3.60 468.00 7.50 975.00 7.00 910.00

39 628.7020 INLET PROTECTION TYPE D 14 EACH 85.00          1,190.00 76.00 1,064.00 120.00 1,680.00 100.00 1,400.00

40 628.7560 TRACKING PADS 1 EACH 2,500.00     2,500.00 3,760.00 3,760.00 3,000.00 3,000.00 3,500.00 3,500.00

41 630.0200 SEEDING TEMPORARY 100 LB 5.00            500.00 51.00 5,100.00 4.28 428.00 4.00 400.00

42 630.0140 SEEDING MIXTURE NO 40 50 LB 6.00            300.00 137.00 6,850.00 7.49 374.50 7.00 350.00

43 640.1303.S POND LINER CLAY 1,900 CY 10.00          19,000.00 6.10 11,590.00 11.00 20,900.00 14.00 26,600.00

44 634.0809 POSTS TUBULAR STEEL 2X2-INCH 

X 9.5-FT 4 EACH 100.00        400.00 155.00 620.00 250.00 1,000.00 200.00 800.00

45 637.2210 SIGNS TYPE II REFLECTIVE H 16 SF 25.00          400.00 26.00 416.00 32.10 513.60 32.00 512.00

46 645.0140 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE R 150 SY 3.25            487.50 2.50 375.00 4.40 660.00 1.00 150.00

47 645.0111 GEOTEXTILE FABRIC TYPE HR 30 SY 4.00            120.00 6.00 180.00 5.00 150.00 3.00 90.00

48 646.0600 REMOVING PAINT MARKINGS 2,000 LF 1.00            2,000.00 2.15 4,300.00 1.12 2,240.00 1.00 2,000.00

49 647.0156 PAVEMENT MARKING ARROWS 

EPOXY TYPE 1 2 EACH 200.00        400.00 178.00 356.00 270.00 540.00 300.00 600.00

50 647.0176 PAVEMENT MARKING ARROWS 

EPOXY TYPE 3 8 EACH 250.00        2,000.00 218.00 1,744.00 331.70 2,653.60 300.00 2,400.00

51 647.0256 PAVEMENT MARKING SYMBOLS 

EPOXY 8 EACH 200.00        1,600.00 86.00 688.00 321.00 2,568.00 88.00 704.00

52 647.0766 PAVEMENT MARKING 

CROSSWALK EPOXY 6-INCH 1,270 LF 6.00            7,620.00 4.70 5,969.00 8.35 10,604.50 5.00 6,350.00

53 647.0716 PAVEMENT MARKING DIAGONAL 

EPOXY 8-INCH 180 LF 8.00            1,440.00 5.20 936.00 6.69 1,204.20 7.00 1,260.00

54 647.0656 PAVEMENT MARKING PARKING 

STALL EXPOXY 8,160 LF 4.00            32,640.00 4.50 36,720.00 4.01 32,721.60 4.00 32,640.00

55 646.0106 PAVEMENT MARKING EPOXY 4-

INCH 465 LF 3.00            1,395.00 0.90 418.50 1.98 920.70 1.00 465.00

56 646.0116 PAVEMENT MARKING EPOXY 6-

INCH 30 LF 10.00          300.00 4.70 141.00 2.94 88.20 3.00 90.00

57 646.0126 PAVEMENT MARKING EPOXY 8-

INCH 270 LF 1.00            270.00 5.20 1,404.00 3.91 1,055.70 4.00 1,080.00

58 SPV.0180.01 SEEDING SPECIAL 14,300 SY 0.50            7,150.00 0.13 1,859.00 0.54 7,722.00 1.00 14,300.00

59 SPV.0180.02 SEED BED PREPARATION 14,300 SY 0.50            7,150.00 0.10 1,430.00 0.54 7,722.00 1.00 14,300.00

60 SPV.0085.01 SEED MIX SPECIAL 37 LB 25.00          925.00 180.00 6,660.00 321.00 11,877.00 300.00 11,100.00

61 SPV.0060.01 INLET COVERS SPECIAL 3067R 1 EACH 500.00        500.00 623.00 623.00 700.00 700.00 700.00 700.00

62 SPV.0060.02 INLET COVERS SPECIAL 3067C 2 EACH 500.00        1,000.00 541.00 1,082.00 650.00 1,300.00 600.00 1,200.00

63 SPV.0060.03 INLET COVERS SPECIAL 1580C 9 EACH 500.00        4,500.00 572.00 5,148.00 600.00 5,400.00 500.00 4,500.00

64 SPV.0060.04 BICYCLE RACK 1 EACH 800.00        800.00 642.00 642.00 2,675.00 2,675.00 1,200.00 1,200.00

65 SPV.0060.05 TEMPORARY STREAM / WETLAND 

CROSSING 1 EACH 20,000.00   20,000.00 36,200.00 36,200.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 21,200.00 21,200.00

66 SPV.0060.06 OUTLET STRUCTURE 1 EACH 5,000.00     5,000.00 3,900.00 3,900.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 2,200.00 2,200.00

67 SPV.0105.01 ELECTRICAL WORK 1 LS 115,000.00 115,000.00 124,000.00 124,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 127,800.00 127,800.00

68 SPV.0105.02 LANDSCAPE PLANTING 

INSTALLATION 1 LS 50,000.00   50,000.00 70,500.00 70,500.00 67,000.00 67,000.00 67,300.00 67,300.00

69 SPV.0060.07 LANDSCAPE PLANTING 

SURVEILLANCE AND CARE 

CYCLES 10 EACH 500.00        5,000.00 237.00 2,370.00 900.00 9,000.00 700.00 7,000.00

TOTAL $1,125,346.50 $1,115,755.50 $1,298,314.20 $1,413,885.00

DK CONTRACTORSA.W. OAKES & SONBIDDING SCHEDULE

ENGINEER'S 

ESTIMATE

WILLKOMM EXCAVATING 

& GRADING, INC.

\\rasmith.com\brookfield\Municipal\1110152\Doc\Bidding\Kenosha Park&Ride 1693-35-75 Bid Tabulation.xlsx Page1 of 1



     
 

9915 39th Avenue    Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504    Phone 262.948.8951    Fax 262.925.6786    PleasantPrairieOnline.com 
  

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®AP 

 
      TO: Mike Pollocoff, Village Administrator 
 
      CC: Jane Romanowski, Village Clerk 
    John Steinbrink, Jr. Public Works Director 
 Vesna Savic, Deputy Village Clerk 
 
FROM: Mike Spence, Village Engineer 
  
 DATE: May 29, 2014 
 
   SUBJ: Bids for 2014 Paving Program 
 
ATTACH: Paving Locations 
   Bid Tabulation 
 
 
Sealed bids for the above referenced project were received until 2 p.m. on May 29, 2014, at the Village 
Hall Auditorium and were publicly opened and read aloud.  Copies of the bid tabulation are enclosed for 
your reference. 
 
The 2014 Paving Projects consists of eight work sections generally described as follows: 
 
Section 1:  Prairie Ridge Subdivision (Ultrathin Overlay) – Mill and dispose of asphaltic pavement, 
furnish and place ultrathin overlay pavement (37,800 square yards, est. qty.), spot curb and gutter repair, 
and asphalt patching. 
 
Section 2: Country Lane Subdivision (Ultrathin Overlay) – Mill and dispose of asphaltic pavement, 
furnish and place ultrathin overlay pavement (10,100 square yards, est. qty.), spot curb and gutter repair, 
and asphalt patching. 
 
Section 3: 104th Avenue (Ultrathin Overlay) – Mill and dispose of asphaltic pavement, furnish and place 
ultrathin overlay pavement (8,950 square yards, est. qty.), spot curb and gutter repair, asphalt patching, 
and place new lane markings.  
 
Section 4: 57th Avenue Water Tower Site – Pulverize and relay asphaltic pavement (635 square yards, est. 
qty.), preparation of turnaround area, and road shouldering. 
 
Section 5: 86th Avenue - Pulverize and relay asphaltic pavement (2,850 square yards, est. qty.), manhole 
and valve adjustments, furnish and place new asphaltic pavement, and road shouldering. This section is 
part of the Local Road Improvement Program (LRIP). 
 
Section 6: 101st Street Lift Station Driveway – Furnish and place asphaltic concrete pavement (80 square 
yards, est. qty.), preparation of driveway. 



 
 

 
 

9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951    Page Two 

 
Section 7: Becker Park Path – Furnish and place asphaltic concrete pavement (75 square yards, est. qty.)  
 
Section 8: Prairie Farms Trail – Furnish and place asphaltic concrete pavement (335 square yards, est. 
qty.) 
 
A total of two bids were received for this project: 
 

• Payne & Dolan, Inc.   $665,596.01 
• Black Diamond Group, Inc.  $763,500.00 

 
The 2014 Paving Program budget is: $670,000. Payne & Dolan, Inc. has completed several pavement 
projects for the Village in the past. 
 
I recommend that the Village award this project to Payne & Dolan, Inc. in the amount of $665,596.01. 
 
Following the formal award by the Village Board, we will prepare the necessary documents for execution 
by the Village and the Contractor.  
 



1 Mill 3/4" asphaltic pavement curb lines, islands: LS 1

2 Mill 3-1/2" asphaltic pavement in cul-de-sacs: LS 1

3 Water valve adjustments: EA 51

4 Asphalt patching around manholes : SY 101

5 Asphalt patching : SY 1000

6
Spot concrete curb and gutter removal and 

replacement:
LF 660

7 Asphaltic concrete pavement, 3/4-inch, 4.75 mm: TON 2325

8 Asphaltic concrete pavement, 2-3/4-inch, 12 mm: TON 1175

9
Mill asphaltic pavement curb lines, cul-de-sacs, 

islands/intersections:
LS 1

10 Water valve adjustments: EACH 9

11 Asphalt patching : SY 50

12 Patching around manholes: EA 12

BID TABULATION
PROJECT NAME: 2014 PAVING PROJECTS

OWNER: VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE

COUNTY: KENOSHA

P
R

A
IR

IE
 R

ID
G

E 
R

ES
ID

EN
TI

A
L

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

LA
N

E 
SU

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

BID DATE: MAY 29TH, 2014

Item Unit

Contractor
Bid Security

Bid Rank (1 = Lowest)

Bid Quantity



13
Spot concrete curb and gutter removal and 

replacement:
LF 140

14 Asphaltic concrete pavement, 3/4-inch, 4.75 mm: TON 500

15
Mill asphaltic pavement curb lines, 

islands/intersections:
LS 1

16 Water valve adjustments: EACH 9

17 Patching around manholes: EA 7

18 Asphalt patching : SY 20

19
Spot concrete curb and gutter removal and 

replacement:
LF 110

20 Asphaltic concrete pavement, 3/4-inch, 4.75 mm: TON 450

21
4-inch yellow epoxy lane marking, furnished and 

placed as specified, at a unit price of:
LF 1481

22
4-inch white epoxy lane markings, furnished and 

placed as specified, at a unit price of:
LF 460

23

8-inch white epoxy channelization line pavement 

marking, furnished and placed as specified, at a unit 

price of:

LF 55

24
18-inch white epoxy stop line marking, furnished 

and placed as specified, at a unit price of:
LF 12

25
12-inch yellow epoxy diagnal pavement marking, 

furnished and placed as specified, at a unit price of:
LF 25

26
Arrow type 2 white epoxy pavment marking, 

furnished and placed, as specified, at a unit price of:
EA 1

27
Word "ONLY" white epoxy pavement marking, 

furnished and placed as specified, at a unit price of:
EA 1

28
Pulverize and relay asphatic pavement and base 

course ( 635 SY est. qty.):
LS 1

29
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3, lower 

layer:
TON 125

C
O

U
N

TR
Y 

LA
N

E 
SU

B
D

IV
IS

IO
N

1
0

4
TH

 A
V

EN
U

E
5

7
TH

 A
V

EN
U

E 
W

A
TE

R
 T

O
W

ER



30
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3,upper  

layer:
TON 85

31 Base aggregate dense, 3/4-inch: TON 75

32 Base aggregate dense, 1-1/4- inch: TON 50

33 Turnaround Preparation: LS 1

34 Excavation below subgrade (estimated quantity): CY 50

35
Granular material for excavation below subgrade 

(estimated quantity):
TON 100

36
Pulverize and relay asphatic pavement and base 

course ( 2,850 SY est. qty.):
LS 1

37
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3, lower 

layer:
TON 525

38
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3,upper  

layer:
TON 440

39 Base aggregate dense, 3/4-inch: TON 165

40 Base aggregate dense, 1-1/4- inch: TON 45

41 Asphaltic pavement removal (driveways): SY 400

42 Concrete pavement removal (driveways): SY 110

43 Excavation below subgrade (estimated quantity): CY 100

44
Granular material for excavation below subgrade 

(estimated quantity):
TON 200

45 Driveway Preparation: LS 1

46
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3, lower 

layer:
TON 20

1
0

1
ST

 S
TR

EE
T 

LI
FT

ST
A

TI
O

N
5

7
TH

 A
V

EN
U

E 
W

A
TE

R
 T

O
W

ER
8

6
TH

 S
TR

EE
T



47
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3,upper  

layer:
TON 14

B
EC

K
ER

 P
A

R
K

48
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3,upper  

layer:
TON 15

P
R

A
IR

IE
 F

A
R

M
S 

TR
A

IL

49
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement, Type E-0.3,upper  

layer:
TON 55

Project Bid Totals:

1
0

1
ST

 S
TR

EE
T 

LI
FT

ST
A

TI
O

N



15,411.07$            15,411.07$            18,500.00$            18,500.00$            

15,542.19$            15,542.19$            18,371.00$            18,371.00$            

65.38$                   3,334.38$              280.00$                 14,280.00$            

203.15$                 20,518.15$            275.00$                 27,775.00$            

35.44$                   35,440.00$            49.00$                   49,000.00$            

38.75$                   25,575.00$            75.00$                   49,500.00$            

88.61$                   206,018.25$         83.00$                   192,975.00$         

66.19$                   77,773.25$            70.00$                   82,250.00$            

11,478.81$            11,478.81$            12,600.00$            12,600.00$            

90.53$                   814.77$                 280.00$                 2,520.00$              

81.78$                   4,089.00$              80.00$                   4,000.00$              

204.45$                 2,453.40$              280.00$                 3,360.00$              

Total

Black Diamond Group, Inc.

5% BB

Payne & Dolan, Inc.

5% BB

1

Unit Price Total

2

Unit Price



38.75$                   5,425.00$              80.00$                   11,200.00$            

88.63$                   44,315.00$            92.00$                   46,000.00$            

7,262.15$              7,262.15$              6,400.00$              6,400.00$              

90.53$                   814.77$                 280.00$                 2,520.00$              

204.48$                 1,431.36$              310.00$                 2,170.00$              

119.11$                 2,382.20$              110.00$                 2,200.00$              

38.75$                   4,262.50$              80.00$                   8,800.00$              

88.63$                   39,883.50$            97.00$                   43,650.00$            

1.50$                      2,221.50$              2.00$                      2,962.00$              

1.50$                      690.00$                 2.00$                      920.00$                 

1.85$                      101.75$                 2.00$                      110.00$                 

9.50$                      114.00$                 11.00$                   132.00$                 

8.25$                      206.25$                 10.00$                   250.00$                 

325.00$                 325.00$                 360.00$                 360.00$                 

375.00$                 375.00$                 420.00$                 420.00$                 

4,364.67$              4,364.67$              5,500.00$              5,500.00$              

76.46$                   9,557.50$              77.00$                   9,625.00$              



82.06$                   6,975.10$              98.00$                   8,330.00$              

23.62$                   1,771.50$              31.00$                   2,325.00$              

28.39$                   1,419.50$              38.00$                   1,900.00$              

4,529.07$              4,529.07$              1,700.00$              1,700.00$              

54.07$                   2,703.50$              45.00$                   2,250.00$              

18.03$                   1,803.00$              30.00$                   3,000.00$              

6,795.17$              6,795.17$              9,700.00$              9,700.00$              

64.28$                   33,747.00$            64.00$                   33,600.00$            

67.20$                   29,568.00$            78.00$                   34,320.00$            

22.75$                   3,753.75$              38.00$                   6,270.00$              

23.62$                   1,062.90$              31.00$                   1,395.00$              

4.50$                      1,800.00$              8.00$                      3,200.00$              

4.50$                      495.00$                 14.00$                   1,540.00$              

54.07$                   5,407.00$              43.00$                   4,300.00$              

18.04$                   3,608.00$              28.00$                   5,600.00$              

2,191.35$              2,191.35$              3,100.00$              3,100.00$              

148.92$                 2,978.40$              150.00$                 3,000.00$              



184.65$                 2,585.10$              205.00$                 2,870.00$              

176.07$                 2,641.05$              420.00$                 6,300.00$              

137.84$                 7,581.20$              190.00$                 10,450.00$            

763,500.00$                              665,596.01$                              



^̀

^̀

^̀

^̀

Photography by AeroMetric Inc.

±

2 0 1 4  V I L L A G E  O F  P L E A S A N T  P R A I R I E  P A V I N G  P R O G R A M2 0 1 4  V I L L A G E  O F  P L E A S A N T  P R A I R I E  P A V I N G  P R O G R A M
 -  3 / 4 "  M I C R O P A V E -  3 / 4 "  M I C R O P A V E  -  P U L V E R I Z E  A N D  R E L A Y -  P U L V E R I Z E  A N D  R E L A Y

Section 3: 
104th Avenue

Section 4: 
Water tower (57th Avenue)

Section 5: 
86th Street

Sewer D:
Millings disposal site

Section 1: 
Prairie Ridge Sub.

Section 6: 
101st Street Lift Station

Section 2: 
Country Ridge Sub.

Section 7:
Becker Park Path

Section 8:
Prairie Farms Trail



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6721  FAX 262.694.4734 

Office of the Village Clerk 

Jane M. Romanowski  

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
 
 
TO:  Village Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jane M. Romanowski 
  Village Clerk 
 
RE:  2014-2015 Towing Licenses 
 
DATE: May 20, 2014 
 

 
The following companies have submitted applications to renew their respective towing licenses in 
the Village: 
 
 Atlas Service Center Inc., 5150 60th Street, Kenosha, WI 
 Firehouse Performance, 4502 22nd Avenue, Kenosha, WI 
 J & M Towing, 6010 26th Avenue, Kenosha, WI 
 Jantz Towing, 3405 Washington Road, Kenosha, WI 
 Jensen & Jensen, 5410 – 50th Street, Kenosha, WI 
 Pro Towing, 6018 26th Avenue, Kenosha, WI 
 
All applications comply with Section 332 of the Municipal Code and the license fees have been paid.  
Chief Smetana has also indicated his approval of the applications listed above.  I recommend 
approval of the six applications for towing licenses effective July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015 subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 332 of the Municipal Code. 
 

* * * * * 
 
 
 

 

 

 



 

9915 39
th
 Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6721  FAX 262.694.4734 

Office of the Village Clerk 

Jane M. Romanowski  

 

 MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Village Board of Trustees 

 

FROM: Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk 

 

DATE: May 20, 2014 

 

RE: Keno Family Drive-In 

 9102 Sheridan Road 

 

 

The Village received a renewal application for the Keno Outdoor Theater.  A safe water test has been 

received and inspections by both the Inspection Department and Fire & Rescue Department have been 

completed and no violations exist. The license fee of $300 license is paid, and I recommend approval of 

this license for the period July 1, 2014- June 30, 2015 subject to the provisions of Chapter 326 of the 

Municipal Code. 

 

 * * * * * 
 


	Agenda June 2 2014
	4. Minutes May 12 & 19 2014
	Minutes May 19 2014 Meeting

	5A. 2014-2015 Liquor License Applications
	8A. 39th Ave & FS1 site improvements & utilities
	Bid Tab for Pleasant Prairie  39th Avenue Improvements and Fire Station  2014-05-22
	39th Ave General Layout

	8B. Material Procurement for Park & Ride
	Park & Ride Bridge Materials Bid Tabulation
	Park & Ride Bridge Construction Drawings 1 thru 3

	8C. Park & Ride paving
	Kenosha ParkRide 1693-35-75 paving Bid Tabulation (1)

	8D. 2014 Paving Program
	Bid Tab 2014 Results
	PAVING LOCATIONS

	8E 1. 2014-2015 Towing License Applications
	8E 2. Keno Outdoor Theater License Renewal

